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Financial Highlights
BEmE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LLFE

2014
20144
$'000
FAT
Turnover e 469,241 712,534 706,134 34%
Profit from operations FEESEH 34,461 208,967 195,465 84%
Profit before non-controlling interests 1R i 2R A 326,530 151,104 128,331 116%
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS - (58,597) (50,397) 100%
Profit attributable to owners RATEEA
of the Company FEfRER 326,530 92,507 77,934 253%
Earnings per shares sRER
Basic (HKD) ER(ET) 0.16 0.06 0.05 167%

Diluted (HKD) 58 (%) 0.15 0.05 0.05 200%
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
and the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year 2015.

2015 and 2016 was and will be remarkable for the Group. The Group is
again excited to envisage the next era in our history after our listing in
2012, a launch of new businesses we have and will be engaged in. As a
packaging materials manufacturer, the Group was successfully listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 13 July
2012. The successful listing does not only provide financial support for
our future expansion and development of the Group, but also enhances
the Group’s reputation and further strengthens our corporate governance
structure. The Group had completed a placing of 83,000,000 ordinary
shares for a total of approximately HK$211.9 million (net of related
expenses) in February 2015 and the proceed from the placing is mainly
used for the construction of our photovoltaic power plant in Xuzhou,
Jiangsu province, PRC.

Different industries in China shows signs of downturns and the growth of
PRC's GDP rate has continuously slowed down. In late 2015, the Chinese
government emphasizes on the promotion of domestic consumption and
broadens its policies on property development industry and a marked
recovery of the property market has been noted. We have started the pre-
sale of our properties located in Xuzhou, PRC and the result is delighting.

It is still a challenging year for the packaging industry in China. The
competition among the peers is fierce. However, the industry has
benefited from the continuing drop of the raw material prices due
to the drop of crude oil price. The second production line in our Ener
manufacturing plant which has been put into operation since late 2014
provided us with an economies of scales and therefore boost our profit
in the packaging material segment in 2015. The Group has disposed
the equity interest of a subsidiary, Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing
Science Technology Co., Ltd, on 1 January 2015. The disposal has bought
a net profit of approximately HK$325.4 million (after tax) to the Group.

During the meeting of the National People’s Congress held in March 2015,
more environmental protection policies have been adopted. It indicated
that the Chinese government will devote more efforts to the development
of the clean energy sector. For photovoltaic power industry, the Chinese
government has committed to raise the installed capacity of solar power
from 28.05GW in 2014 to 100GW by 2020. It makes the photovoltaic
power industry one of the most fast growing sector in the PRC energy
industry. In 2015, the Group has obtained approval for the construction of
a total of 30 megawatts (MW) photovoltaic power project located in Wei
Ji Town, Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. 15MW Photovoltaic
Project has achieved on-grid connection and commenced power
generation in late December 2015 and the remaining 15MW Photovoltaic
Project is expected to achieve on-grid connection in 2016.

BRMRR
AANERRIBERZEREBEERAR ([RDR | ERE

WEARSGRE AE@ ) EE([EE)e([EEE))
RAZHRALEB 2015 FFR -

2015 2016 F R WK AAEBERIELN—F - 1
BME2012F LWk - AEEBOREERS - B8
B TERRES - HMOEEBESHEHELDNES -
ERBEMEEER  AEEDN201247H 131
RNEBBHMAERSHIARARER LT o fKIH E™
MEABMIARRERMAEBENERBHEME RS -
TMEAAREENEE  E—PZERMHEEET AL
o M2015F2 A AEEED EXEEEREH211.9
BEB7T (FBR1ERIR S ) 83,000,000 A% & @AY K AL &
FIiSsRIBE ZAERBMINFBUIHE RN 2 L RE

B o

FEEITERT NEPR A BB AL E BB R
BB - M2015F T+F  PEBRMFRARE
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The net profit of the Group and the profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$326.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$2 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The dividend represents a payout
ratio of 12.3% of the Company’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the 2015 Annual General Meeting to be held on
11 May 2016, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 26
May 2016 to Shareholders who are registered at the close of business on
18 May 2016.

I am also very delighted to inform our shareholders that we are going
to expand our business into another sector, the cloud computing, in
2016. Every day, the technology is changing the world. The invention of
computing has huge impact on the culture of human and, the innovation
in cloud technology has changed the world of computing. With the cloud
computing, the CAPEX for IT is no longer a burden for all businesses,
cloud computing provides a much cheaper and faster way to access IT. In
fact, the cloud computing industry in PRC is still in the development stage.
In order to grasp the opportunity, the Group has entered an agreement
to purchase 15 data centers which are equipped with cloud technology
in March 2016. The transaction is expected to be completed on or before
30 June, 2016. The deal will provide an entrance for the group to enter
the cloud industry and | believe cloud computing can provide additional
financial returns to the Group in the foreseeable future.

Last but not least, | would also like to thank all my fellow Directors for
their insightful advice to the Company. On behalf of the Board, | extend
to all our stakeholders, business partners and Shareholders, our sincere
thanks and appreciation for your continuous support.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Organization Chart
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis
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OVERVIEW

The Group has reported a decrease in turnover and an increase in
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015 (the “Year”) when compared to the year ended 31
December 2014.

In 2015, the Group focused on sales of imported films, self-manufactured
films, development of residential properties and sale of self-generated
photovoltaic power. The Group had disposed Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging &
Printing Science Technology (“Jiangsu Shuntai”) (effective as at 1 January
2015) and has been engaged in the generation of photovoltaic power in
Xuzhou (effective since 28 December 2015). As a result of the disposal
of Jiangsu Shuntai and the engagement in the business of photovoltaic
power generation, the Group has broadly reclassified its operation into
four classes of business namely, (i) trading, (i) manufacturing and sales of
packaging materials, (iii) development of properties and (iv) generation of
photovoltaic power. Among the manufacturing and sales of packaging
materials business, there are three products which are (i) non-cigarette-
related film, (i) anti-counterfeiting cigarette film and (iii) other cigarette-
related film.

In 2015, the Group has two manufacturing plants for production of
packaging materials and a solar power plant for the generation of
photovoltaic power. The first manufacturing plant is located in Qingdao,
the PRC (the “Ener Manufacturing Plant”). The Ener Manufacturing
Plant is used for the manufacturing of other cigarette films and non-
cigarette-related films. The second manufacturing plant is located in
Huaian, the PRC (the “Sheen Colour Manufacturing Plant”). The
Sheen Colour Manufacturing Plant is used for the manufacturing of anti-
counterfeiting cigarette films. The solar power plant is located in Xuzhou,
the PRC (the “Xuzhou Photovoltaic Power Plant”) which has been put
into operation in December 2015.

Set out below are the management discussion and analysis of the Group
for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE R TR AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result of operation
Turnover

The turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes and which are
principally derived from the manufacturing and trading of cigarette-related
and non-cigarette related packaging materials. No sales has been recorded
for sale of properties during the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.
The Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$469.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, representing a decrease of approximately
34.1% compared to approximately HK$712.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 due to the disposal of our subsidiary, Jiangsu Shuntai
Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co. Ltd.,.

Trading

The increase in turnover from trading by approximately 76.9% to
approximately HK$81.9 million for the Year (2014: approximately HK$46.3
million) was attributable to (i) an increase of approximately 63.5%, or
approximately HK$29.4 million to approximately HK$75.7 million in
trading of imported cigarette films and (ii) a single trade transaction of
photovoltaic materials amounting to approximately HK$6.2 million in
2015 (2014 Nil).

Manufacturing and sales of packaging materials

The turnover of manufacturing and sales of packaging materials was
contributed by the sales of four packaging products which were (i)
cigarette paper boxes (discontinued after the disposal of our subsidiary,
Jiangsu Shuntai), (i) non-cigarette-related films, (iii) anti-counterfeiting
cigarette films and (iv) other cigarette-related films.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the sales of cigarette paper boxes
amounted to approximately HK$304.7 million (2015: Nil).

Bt %5 [
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EIRE R TR AT

An increase in turnover from manufacturing and sales of packaging
materials (after excluding the effect from the sales of cigarette paper
boxes) by approximately 7.1% from approximately HK$361.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$387.2 million
for the Year was mainly contributed by the growth in (i) sales of non-
cigarette-related films by approximately 17.9%, from approximately
HK$89.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$105.9 million for the Year and (ii) sales of other cigarette-related
films by approximately 5.8%, from approximately HK$178.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$189.3 million
for the Year. After the commencement of the second production line
in Ener Manufacturing Plant since December 2014, a better allocation
of production mix of both other cigarette-related films and non-
cigarette-related films had been achieved. The production efficiency and
effectiveness had been significantly improved, leading to a betterment
of sales plan which in turn enriched the sales of the whole segment. The
sales of anti-counterfeiting cigarette films remained stable in 2015 when
compared to 2014.

Development of properties

There was no sale of properties for the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2015. Pre-sales of properties has been commenced in 2016.

Generation of photovoltaic power

The Xuzhou Photovoltaic Power Plant has achieved on-grid connection
and commenced power generation since 28 December 2015. The sales
of photovoltaic power amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million for the
Year.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit (after excluding the gross profit generated by sales of
cigarette paper boxes) increased by approximately HK15.4 million, or
approximately 13.3%, from approximately HK$115.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$131.0 million for the Year.
Gross profit margin (after excluding the gross profit generated by sales of
cigarette paper boxes) decreased by 0.4% from approximately 28.3% for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately 27.9% for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE S R R DT

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The distribution costs are usually incurred by the sales of our other
cigarette-related film and non-cigarette-related film. The distribution costs
increased by approximately HK$2.9 million, or approximately 19.6%, from
approximately HK$14.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
approximately HK$17.7 million for the Year, primarily due to the increase
of transportation and marketing expenses for our other cigarette-related
film and non-cigarette-related film clients which was in line with the
increase of the sales of those products.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$13.0 million,
or approximately 17.0%, from approximately HK$76.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$89.4 million for the Year.
The staff cost of Jiangsu Shuntai amounted to approximately HK$23.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2015: Nil). The net increase
of approximately HK$29.5 million in staff costs (after excluding the staff
costs incurred by Jiangsu Shuntai) was attributable to the hiring of experts
for the new business of photvoltaic power generation, the share-based
payment and a special bonus to senior management in 2015.

NET INCOME FROM DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount was the result of a disposal of a subsidiary, Jiangsu Shuntai in
2015.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs decreased by approximately 16.3% from approximately
HK$18.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$15.4 million for the Year, primarily due to the decrease in the PRC
interest rate of financing and the repayment of bank loans during the Year
when compared to 2014.
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INCOME TAX

Income tax increased by approximately HK$15.1 million from
approximately HK39.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
approximately HK$54.6 million for the Year. The income tax of Jiangsu
Shuntai amounted to approximately HK$ 21.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2015: Nil). The increase (after excluding the income
tax incurred by Jiangsu Shuntai) was mainly due to the one-off tax
payment for the gain on disposal of a subsidiary, Jiangsu Shuntai in 2015.
The tax paid regarding the disposal amounted to approximately HK$36.7
million.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the Year increased by approximately 253.0% from
approximately HK$92.5 million to approximately HK$326.5 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$194.4 million (which were denominated
in HKD, RMB and USD) compared with approximately HK$117.0 million as
at 31 December 2014, representing an increase of approximately HK$77.4
million. Such increase was mainly due to the cash inflow from issuance
of new ordinary shares of the Company during the Year and general
operating activities.

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015
were approximately HK$303.3 million (2014: approximately HK$509.9
million) denominated in RMB, United States dollar and HK dollar, of
which approximately HK$233.4 million (2014: approximately HK$439.9
million) were current interest-bearing borrowings and approximately
HK$69.9 million (2014: approximately HK$70.0 million) were non-current
borrowings. Approximately 77.7% of the borrowings were fixed rate
borrowings and 22.3% of the borrowings were variable rate borrowings.
The Group’s gearing ratio, measured by net debt divided by shareholders’
equity as at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%, decreased from
approximately 72% as at 31 December 2014 to approximately 12% as at
31 December 2015. It was primarily due to the decrease of bank loans for
working capital.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases made by the PRC subsidiaries which give rise to receivables,
payables, cash balances and bank loans that are denominated in US
dollars. Presently, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure.
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As the functional currencies for all subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB, these
subsidiaries are not exposed to any currency risk due to the exchange
rate movement of RMB. For subsidiaries established outside of the PRC,
they have no material financial assets and liabilities denominated in RMB.
Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to RMB currency risk is insignificant.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$196.5 million (2014: approximately HK$22.8 million),
which was mainly used in the construction of a solar power plant
amounting to approximately HK$152.5 million.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged its fixed assets with
net book value of approximately HK$163.0 million (31 December 2014:
approximately HK$179.5 million) for the purpose of securing loans with
carrying value of approximately HK$72.3 million (31 December 2014:
approximately HK$199.0 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposal of the Equity Interest of Jiangsu Shuntai
Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd

On 15 January 2015, Sheen China Group Holdings Limited (the “Vendor"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Chinese Hongkong
International Tobacco Group Co., Limited (the “Purchaser”) entered into
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the
51% equity interest in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company"”) at a consideration of
RMB325.0 million which were satisfied in cash (the “Disposal”). Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Company does not hold any interest in
the Target Company and the Target Company ceases to be a subsidiary of
th Company.

The Purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Jinjia Color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia"), which holds the remaining
49% equity interest in the Target Company before the Disposal and thus
a substantial shareholder and a connected person of the Company before
the Disposal. The Purchaser is an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The Disposal therefore constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

HRATATENBA RN EE I RARE - 5%
EB AR & B AR E R & B MR SN E
B o LR BIAIMERA W BARIM S © %F
RAFWEAARETENEREHEENAE -
It AEEMARBERRBY TEX -

BRI

FR AEBENERAASEBENEI195B88 T
(2014%F : 4922 8B EEL) TBARER—EX
PEERS » ©REL A 1525 8B °

EERH

MR2015F 128318 - ASBERERELN7238
EBT(2014F12A318 : 190588 T)NE
S EREFELN163.0 8 EE L (2014F 12 A 31
H:#179.5888 ) METEE -

EARE EANBREUEHRELQE
HE THIER BN RIRH AR A AR IRE

R2015F1 A1 IEESEERER AR (E
Bl BRRBRNEEHBAR) BhEFEEERER
EEBRAR(TER] T REE R - Bt
BEFERGRELEMEF G KGRERELEHRIER
BEOBEEERAR(TEEAT ) K951% I%E -
REA AR 325,000,0007C * ABEESH([HESE
H]) o HEFHAETKE  AARTBIFEEEARE
gz B EARTHEARARMNMBAR -

B R SR EEBROARAR (MRYIGE])
ME2EMBAR  MANDENHESRAFE BT
RAHIERT 49% g - AR HEFRA AT EMRR
RARBWEEAT - RIBBEBAXZABRAF]
Er EMRNT EWRA]) - ENAFRYSDERHEBE
A Bt ARRRINEEAL - #Ut - RIBLET
RAIE14AE - HEFEBRALF—HBERS °



R R EEARA
—E-nFFH

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE S R RO

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal exceeds 75%, the Disposal
constitutes a very substantial disposal for the Company pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and the shareholders’ approval requirements.

The Disposal was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 March 2015. On 16 April 2015,
the registration of transfer of the equity interest of Jiangsu Shuntai with
Jiangsu Adminstration for Industy and Commerce was completed.

For details of the Disposal, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 January 2015, 9 March 2015 and 16 April 2015 and
the circular of the Company dated 17 February 2015.

Approval for the Construction of a 15MW Photovoltaic
Power Project in Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province

On 30 April 2015, Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has obtained
approval from Xuzhou Development and Reform Commission (the “First
Approval”) for the construction of a 15 megawatts (MW) photovoltaic
power project (the “15MW Photovoltaic Power Project”). The 15MW
Photovoltaic Project is located in Wei Ji Town, Wei Ning County, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC with an expected power capacity of 15MW. The total
investment amount is approximately RMB 120,000,000. On 28 December
2015, the 15MW Photovoltaic Project has achieved on-grid connection
and commenced power generation.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 30 April 2015 and 28 December 2015.

Acquisition of the Equity Interest of Rise Power Limited

On 12 October 2015, the Company (as purchaser), Li Xiu Yun (as vendor)
and Mr. Bao Guang Qing, Mr. Du Jian Feng, Mr. Hu Yu Rui and Mr. Mei
Jin Ping (together with Li Xiu Yun, as the guarantors) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant
to which Li Xiu Yun conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital of Rise
Power Limited (“Rise Power”) at the consideration of HK$90,000,000 (the
“Consideration”), which shall be settled by the Company by way of issue
of the convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (the
"Convertible Bond"”) to Li Xiu Yun (or her nominee) on the completion
date. Upon completion, the Company will hold the entire issued share
capital of Rise Power which will in turn indirectly own the entire equity
interest in Shenzhen Yi Er Shan Photovoltaic Electricity Company Limited.
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As all the relevant percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
respect of the transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement are less than 5% and the Consideration shall be satisfied by
way of issue of the Convertible Bond, the Sale and Purchase Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a share
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempt from
shareholders' approval under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2015, the parties to the Sale and Purchase Agreement
entered into the supplemental agreement to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement to extend the long stop date for the transactions contemplated
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement from 31 December 2015 to 30
June 2016 (or such later date as the parties to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement may agree in writing).

For details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 October 2015 and 31
December 2015.

Approval for the Construction of another 15MW
Photovoltaic Power Project in Wei Ning County,
Jiangsu Province

On 4 November 2015, Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Company
Limited (“Xuzhou Sheentai”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has obtained approval from Xuzhou Development and
Reform Commission for the construction of another 15 megawatts (MW)
photovoltaic power project (the “Second 15MW Photovoltaic Power
Project”). The Second 15MW Photovoltaic Project is located in Wei Ji
Town, Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC with an expected
power capacity of 15MW. The total investment amount is approximately
RMB 120,000,000. As at 4 November 2015, together with the First
Approval obtained on 30 April 2015, Xuzhou Sheentai is entitled to
construct two photovoltaic power projects with an aggregate power
capacity of 30 MWs.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 4 November 2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2014: Nil).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 345 employees (as
compared with 437 employees as at 31 December 2014) with total staff
cost of approximately HK$67.5 million incurred for the Year (as compared
with approximately HK$61.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2014). The Group’s remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual merits. The Company has also
adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme and a share option scheme to
provide incentive or reward to high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 4 February 2015, Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.
(the “Qingdao Ener”) (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into an agreement with Qingdao Justo Packaging
Co., Ltd. (the “Qingdao Justo”) (the "Agreement”), pursuant to
which Qingdao Justo shall purchase not more than 1,089.45 tonnes
of cigarette films from Qingdao Ener for a period from the date of the
Agreement until 31 December 2015 with a total consideration of not
more than RMB24,891,556.04 (including value added tax) (equivalent to
approximately HK$30,840,637.93).

As at the date of the Agreement, the equity interests of Qingdao Justo
were owned indirectly as to 30% by Shenzhen Jinjia Color Prinitnig Group
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia”), while Shenzhen Jinjia also held 49%
equity interest in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Shuntai”) (the then indirect 51% owned subsidiary
of the Company). Qingdao Justo was hence an associate of Shenzhen
Jinjia and thus a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules for the Agreement was less than 5%, the Agreement was
subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but was exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval requirements.

Upon the completion of the disposal of the 51% equity interest in Jiangsu
Shuntai (details of which are set out in the section headed “Significant
investment, material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries” above),
the Company does not hold any interest in Jiangsu Shuntai. Accordingly,
Qingdao Justo has ceased to be an associate of Shenzhen lJinjia and a
connected person of the Company.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK0.02 per share for the Year
(2014: HK$0.08 per share before the effect of the share subdivision).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest of Treasure
Cloud Limited

On 17 March 2016, the Company and Bloom Shine Investments Limited
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and Bloom Shine Investments
Limited conditionally agreed to sell, the entire equity interest in Treasure
Cloud Limited for a total consideration of HK$236,160,000 which shall
be satisfied by the Company issuing a convertible bond in the principal
amount of HK$236,160,000.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 17 March 2016 and 18 March 2016.

PROSPECT

The world is changing. The broad shift to social networking is transforming
the way people in which engage and collaborate with other and is
accelerating the adoption of technologies that connect people. The
proliferation of mobile phones worldwide makes it possible for people
to conduct business from their phones. Progress in data science moves
companies beyond just automating business processes to more data-driven,
predictive computing.

People are living in a remarkable era, a new technology named cloud
computing is created. The convergence of cloud technologies is
fundamentally transforming how companies sell, service, market, engage
and innovate. Cloud computing has changed the way how business are
developed and deployed. Companies no longer need to buy and maintain
their own infrastructure in order to create and run business but gain access
to a variety of business via internet. The technology save the cost and
simplify the complexity of managing the hardware or software in-house.

Cloud computing can be broadly described as one that delivers
computing, storage, and applications as a service over the Internet. It
allows business customers to get the computing they need without having
to make capital investments in computer hardware and software. It offers
access to multiple data sets and relevant expertise. Cloud computing, a
new model of innovation, manufacturing and distribution, provides an
open environment for collaboration and rapid scaling.

Nowadays, cloud computing industry is fast-growing and crowded. The
size of the market is huge, considering the global spendings by companies
on fix costs for servers, networking, data-centers, infrastructure software,
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databases, data warehouses, and variable cost on computer specialists
in the past. Cloud computing business can offer tremendous financial
returns and pay strong returns on capital.

The Company is planning to acquire and build secure, business-class data
centers in the PRC to provide access to raw infrastructure (IAAS). The first
15 data centers we are planning to acquire are mainly located in Jiangsu,
Jiangxi, Zhejiang, Anhui, Hebei and Shangdong province, PRC. They are
all equipped with cloud technology. The equipment (servers, routers,
switches, firewalls, load balancers, cabinets, wiring, etc.) and software
required to deliver services is typically purchased for cloud computing.

These data centers form several pools of computing resources that
are virtualized for greater efficiency and nimbleness but each pool of
computing resource is only dedicated to several particular customers and
therefore are private clouds.

These data centers are designed to provide customers with privacy and
high levels of performance, reliability and security. Each of them has
a comprehensive security infrastructure, including firewalls, intrusion
detection systems, and encryption for transmissions over the Internet,
which is monitored and tested on a regular basis. Each data center
maintains a multi-tenant application architecture that has been designed
to enable its service to scale securely, reliably and cost effectively.
This multi-tenant application architecture maintains the integrity and
separation of customer data while still permitting all customers to use the
same application functionality simultaneously. These data centers can be
deployed rapidly. Customers can save time from procuring, installing or
maintaining the servers, storage, networking equipment, security products
or other hardware and software. These data centers provide IAAS service
which enable developers the opportunity to create new and innovative
apps without having to invest in hardware and distribution. Customers
benefit from the predictability of their future costs since they generally pay
for the service on a per subscriber basis for the term of the subscription
contract.

Cloud computing offers a broad portfolio of integrated IT solutions
for common business needs (including for ecommerce, web content
management, website hosting, data services, etc.). After the completion
of the acquisition of these 15 data centers, the Company will build and/
or further acquire more data centers. The Company will put more effort
on developing these private clouds to hybrid cloud computing and offer
advisory services for technology strategy, security and compliance, and
application assessment and migration (PAAS & SAAS).

The Company will also continue to explore opportunities regarding the
tobacco packaging, properties development and photovoltaic industry
available in the PRC in order to diversify our business portfolio.
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Executive Directors #1175

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 54, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012. He is
now also the director of all the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Guo is responsible
for the overall management and formulation of business strategy of the
Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-learning college of the School of
the Central Committee of Communist Party of China in 1988, majoring
in economic management. Since 1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in
cigarette packaging business and established a strong business tie with
the senior members of some cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive
business and management experience in commercial business to our
management team.

In 2005, Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of
Commerce and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In
2010, Mr. Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and
has been its legal representative since then.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an executive Director and is the
father of Mr. Guo Cheng, an executive Director.

Mr. Guo is the director of Sheen China Group Holdings Inc., Sheen China
Group Holdings Limited, Century Leader Asia Limited, Ling Xian Fei Yu
Import & Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Ling Xian Fei Yu"”), Sheen China
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen HK"), Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology
Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Ener”), Jiangsu Sheen Color Science Technology Co.,
Ltd (“Jiangsu Sheen Color”), the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Guo is also
the sole director and sole shareholder of Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Guo Yumin
BEREE

HERKE  545% 0 BARRIMEIRATRER - B
ER202F6 A22BEZEARITES - IRKEIR
AEAREEMENBARINES - BEEBEAEED
RESEID K HTE TSRS o

FBRAET 1988 F R h e R BRI R KR S -
TRREEES - FLRERI1IBFEREFERER
X715 BETEREELERN MK SR F B X
R - BRERKMNERESFEREENEHEE
TETRLEER -

R20054F @ BEERIERETHHE @ WA
FHEAEERFE - R20109F - BRAEKRIDRIIT RN
g BUEEREEAREK -

BAERATEFERLIORBE - TARITESFH
ST LRI -

BRERAEEMBARIREEBIZERERAR - IR
EEERRBRAQA - BETMERLQF  BERT
EHARIDBERAR(TRERT ) - JBZE(FE)
BERAR(TEEEE])  BERABEMEARAR
([BERHED  ITHSRBRAERRR (NIHSR
HDHWES - BEETRIBREFEZERERAE (K
RANERRAIR) MM —E R R ME—RR



R R EEARA
—E-nFFH

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EENSREEERER

Bzt

Ms. Xia Yu, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group.

Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu
Commerce College (which was combined with other colleges to form
Yangzhou University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has 18
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.

Ms. Xia is the director of Sheen HK and Qingdao Ener, the subsidiaries of
the Group.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company, and the step-mother of Mr. Guo
Cheng, an executive Director.

Ms. Xia Yu
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Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, aged 49, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 January 2013. Mr. Zeng is
responsible for the overall management and business of the Group.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University with a Bachelor of Physics
degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree of Materials Science from
Zhejiang University in 1991. Mr. Zeng possesses more than 19 years of
experience in the cigarette-related industry in the PRC and is familiar with
the practice of the tobacco market in the PRC.

Mr. Zeng is the director of Qingdao Ener, the subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
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Mr. Guo Cheng
R ELE

Mr. Guo Cheng, aged 30, studied in courses of international trade 2B %% - 305% ' BhBERERANETAZEEE S
in RMIT University. Mr. Guo has years of experience in investing and ~ #12 - WEREBETERE S FRERTPEEIEL
corporate management of the cigarette packaging material industry. He is 5 o fiIREARRRINITES o LT ERRITESS]
currently an executive director of the Company. Mr. Guo Cheng is the son ~ ERFEEHNRZFRATESER/ L LHET -

of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and the step-son of Ms. Xia Yu,

an executive Director.
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Mr. Bau Siu Fung, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director on
22 June 2012. Mr. Bau joined the Group in 2011 and he is now also the
company secretary and chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Bau is
responsible for financial management and compliance of the Group.

Mr. Bau graduated from Idaho State University with a Bachelor of
Business Administration in Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has years
of experience in the accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Bau Siu Fung
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Ms. Fan Qing, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong.

Ms. Fan received a master's degree in business administration from the
Graduate School of Renmin University of China in 2000. She obtained
a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange after completing a
training course for the senior management member of a listed company
in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president of Shenzhen
Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently the chairman
of the board of directors of an investment management company in
Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca Technology
Co., Ltd. (stock code: $Z002213), a company whose shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Ms. Fan Qing
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Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Fong was admitted as a
barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a solicitor in England
and Wales in 1986 and in Hong Kong in 1987. He has practiced law for
over 30 years and is a member of the law societies of Hong Kong, Upper
Canada and England.

Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in Canada in 1974 and his
Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law School in Toronto in 1978.
Mr. Fong is appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the
China-appointed Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a member
of the Hong Kong Communications Authority. Mr. Fong is currently the
independent non-executive director of the following companies whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (stock code: 124), Greenland Hong
Kong Holdings Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited)
(stock code: 337), China Investment Development Limited (stock code:
204), China Qilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2883), and Evergreen
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 238).

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
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Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and finance.

Mr. Lo received a bachelor's degree of business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in 1993 and a master's degree of professional
accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a
certified public accountant, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, fellow member of CPA Australia and
an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. Lo is a practising accountant in Hong Kong, and has become
the managing partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited since 2014. Mr.
Lo is currently the independent non-executive director of Sun Hing Vision
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 125), China Zhongwang Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1333), China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: 715) and Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock code: 2699).
Mr. Lo is also the founding executive vice-president and council member
of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association.

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
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Consultant

Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, aged 68, was appointed as a consultant on 13
July 2014. Mr. Lau is a Standing Committee Member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
is the senior partner of Messrs. Chu & Lau Solicitors & Notaries. He was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star and Justice of the Peace. Mr. Lau is a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, a solicitor of the Supreme Court
of England and Wales, a China-appointed attesting officer and a notary
public. Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive director of Brightoil
Petroleum (Holdings) Limited, Franshion Properties (China) Limited,
Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited, Yuexiu Transport Infrastructure Limited,
Yuexiu Property Company Limited, Joy City Property Limited (formerly
known as COFCO Land Holdings Limited) and The People’s Insurance
Company (Group) of China Limited. He was formerly an independent
non-executive director of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited.
The shares of the above companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (formerly known as Wing Hang
Bank Limited, delisted from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
with effect from 16 October 2014), Bank of China Group Insurance
Company Limited, BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limited, Nanyang
Commercial Bank Limited, Wing Hang Bank (China) Limited, a director of
Chu & Lau Nominees Limited, Sun Hon Investment and Finance Limited,
Wydoff Limited, Wytex Limited, Trillions Profit Nominees and Secretarial
Services Limited, Helicoin Limited and Wyman Investments Limited. Mr.
Lau was also the president of the Law Society of Hong Kong, a board
member of the Urban Renewal Authority, a board member of the Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and a member of the Commission
on Strategic Development of the Hong Kong Government, and served as
a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council from 1995 to 2004 (being
the member of the Provisional Legislative Council from 1997 to 1998).

Mr. Lau Hon Chuen
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Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman of the Company)
Ms. Xia Yu (Executive Director of the Company)
Mr. Xu Weimin (Vice President of the Company)
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
(Executive Director of the Company)
Ms. Li Li (Vice President of the Company)
Mr. Huang Bo (Vice President of the Company)
Ms. Li Jing (Director of the subsidiaries)
Mr. Jiang Chang (General Manager of a subsidiary)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin (Executive Vice President of the subsidiaries)

. Mr. Zhang Xiangrong (Director of the subsidiaries)

. Mr. Yu Xiaofeng (Director of the subsidiaries)

. Mr. Zhu Hengjin (Human Resource Manager of the Company)
. Mr. Dong Zhenghua (In-house Legal Adviser of the Company)
. Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Executive Director, Company Secretary and

Chief Financial Officer of the Company)

. Ms. Fan Li (Chief Financial Officer of the subsidiaries)

. Mr. Wang Xuguang (Chief Financial Officer of the subsidiaries)
. Ms. Tong Xiaomeng (Director of the subsidiaries)

. Mr. Guo Cheng (Executive Director of the Company)
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Weimin, aged 47, graduated from the Finance and Economics
School of Suzhou University and China Europe International Business
School, and received his Bachelor of Economics and Master of Business
Administration. Mr. Xu served as the Director of Finance and Trade Division
of Xuzhou Municipal Government in his early years, and subsequently
served as the Financial Controller in the affiliates under China Resources.
He joined the Group in 2012. He is currently the vice president of the
Company and in charge of investment businesses.

Mr. Ji Yishun, aged 55, was admitted into the Central Academy of
Craft Art (currently known as the Academy of Art and Design, Tsinghua
University) in 1983. In his artist career, he has created hundreds of pieces
(sets) of boccaro teapot artwork. Mr. Ji is a master of Chinese ceramic
art, master of arts and crafts of Jiangsu Province, and one of the first
researcher-level senior craft artists in the PRC. Mr. Ji is a member of the
National People's Congress (“NPC") of Jiangsu Province, member of the
standing committee of NPC Yixing Municipality, vice president of Ceramic
Arts Committee of China Ceramic Industry Association, member of
China National Arts and Crafts society, councilor of the Purple Industry
Association, vice president of the Pot Arts Professional Committee, and
vice president of the Collection and Appreciation Committee. He joined
the Group in 2014 and is currently vice president of the Company,
responsible for business expansion of the Group.

Ms. Li Li, aged 32, received her Bachelor of Arts degree from Sun Yat-sen
University in 2006 and Master’s degree in media from the University of
Sydney in Australia in 2009. She worked in Phoenix TV of Hong Kong and
was responsible for international market operations. She joined the Group
in 2013. She is currently the vice president of the Company and General
manager of Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy Power Generation Company
Limited, responsible for business development.

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 60, graduated from a self-taught course
in Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and
obtained the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong
passed the uniform examination organized by the Chinese government
authorities and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in
2003. Mr. Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling
corporate-related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong
graduated from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China
University of Political Science and Law and the Open University of China
and obtained the qualification of intermediate professional manager as
approved by the Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training
& Certification Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal
advisor of the Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of
the Group.
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Ms. Tong Xiaomeng, aged 39, graduated from lJilin Railway Economic
School in 1996, majoring in financial accounting in transportation field.
In 2002, Ms. Tong passed the intermediate level of national examination
of department of finance in the PRC and was issued a certificate to certify
her qualification level in accountancy. Ms. Tong joined the Group in
2000, possesses extensive years of experience in accounting and financial
management.

Mr. Yu Xiaofeng, aged 52, graduated from Zhejiang Institute of
Engineering (which is currently known as Zhejiang University of
Technology) with a bachelor’s degree of science in 1983. Mr. Yu joined the
Group in 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour, and
also the general manager of Jiangsu Sheen Colour. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in the technology aspect, production and facility management
of the printing related business. Mr. Yu was familiar with the technology
in connection with the printing of cigarette films and paper boxes.

Ms. Li Jing, aged 35, passed the higher education self-taught
examination for economic management of the China University of Mining
and Technology in 2005. In 2009, Ms. Li graduated from the distant-
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China, majoring in economic management. Ms. Li joined the
Group in 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour.

Mr. Jiang Chang, aged 44, studied applied chemistry (distant-learning)
and graduated from Hubei University in 2000. Mr. Jiang has been engaged
in the packaging materials business for more than 10 years and has
been in-depth experience in the production facilities and the production
management in relation to the manufacturing of BOPP films, in particular,
films for cigarette packaging. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2010. He is
currently the general manager of Qingdao Ener and is responsible for its
operation of production process.

Mr. Wang Xuguang, aged 36, graduated from Laiyang Agricultural
College in 2004, majoring in accounting. He has a bachelor’s degree
in management. Mr. Wang jointed the Group in November 2011 and
is currently the chief financial officer of Qingdao Ener. Mr. Wang has
extensive experience in accounting and finance management.
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Mr. Zhang Xiangrong, aged 50, graduated from Nanjing Construction
and Engineering College (currently known as Nanjing Tech University) in
1989 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Since his graduation, Mr.
Zhang has been engaged in property development and has extensive work
experience. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in 2013 and is currently a director
and general manager of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 44, graduated from Nanjing University in
1994, majoring in economic management. He worked at China Life,
where he was engaged in life insurance business. Since 2001, he has been
involved in property-related work. Mr. Wang is currently the executive vice
president of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.,
responsible for project development.

Ms. Fan Li, aged 40, graduated from Jiangsu Radio and TV University with
a finance diploma in July 1997 and from Nanjing University of Science and
Technology in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree, majoring in finance. She
has obtained the qualifications of middle-level accountant, tax accountant
and certified management accountant of the PRC. Ms. Fan has been
engaged in finance work for property companies for years and has
extensive experience in finance management and knowledge of taxation.
Ms. Fan joined the Group on 1 February 2014 and is currently the chief
financial officer of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd..

Mr. Zhu Hengjin, aged 29, obtained a certificate of diploma of
hairdressing salon management from Headmasters Advanced Academy
in 2008. In 2011, Mr. Zhu joined the Group and is currently the human
resources manager of the Company.
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The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the year ended 31 December 2015 except
for the deviation from code provision A.1.8 of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the Code, an issuer should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors.
With regular, timely and effective communications among the Directors
and the management of the Group, the management of the Group
believes that all potential claims and legal actions against the Directors can
be handled effectively, and the possibility of actual litigation against the
Directors is relatively low. The Company will review and consider to make
such arrangement as and when it thinks necessary.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

Appointment, Re-Election and Retirement of the
Directors

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
"Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his/her appointment and any Director appointed by the
Board as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, Mr. Bau Siu Fung
and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in 2016 (the “AGM"), and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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Pursuant to article 112 of the Article, Mr. Guo Cheng will retire as Director
at the AGM, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Bau Siu Fung, all being
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from 13 July 2015 and may
be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
13 July 2014 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months’ written notice.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, being an executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 13 July 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at
least three months’ written notice.

Mr. Guo Cheng, being an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
20 May 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months' written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to
the date of this annual report.
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Board of Directors

The Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are set
out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Mr. Guo Cheng

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 20 to 32 of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2015.
All independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Mr. Guo Cheng is the son of
Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board, and
the step-son of Ms. Xia Yu, an executive Director. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board's primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments, the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.
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Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are summarized as follows:

Board
meeting
Ezeen
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) BEREE(ZE) 14116
Ms. Xia Yu Bt 15/16
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang Bl 15/16
Mr. Guo Cheng (appointed on 20 May 2015)  F#i%4%
(14201545 A20 REZA) 1/5
Mr. Bau Siu Fung LN it 16/16
Mr. He Lijun (resigned on 15 January 2015) =P
(R2015F1AISRBE)  NATER
Mr. Huang Bo (resigned on 24 September 2015) &% %4
(201559 A 24 BEHE) 12113
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Fan Qing il 1116
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix HMEE 14/16
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy BEREE 13/16

Board Committees

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”),
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the

remuneration committee

efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three
members comprising Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all being independent
non-executive Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the final results of the Group for 2014 and the 2015 interim
results and report of the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2015 had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report, and
confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings are set out above.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
and (i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them.
No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both
of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin,
an executive Director. The majority of members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of
the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities within the Group and general market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Code to make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the
members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2015. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are set out above.

At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change;
(i) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and making recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; and (iii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman), an
executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both of which
are independent non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2015. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.

Diversity of the Board

The Group has adopted policy in relation to the diversity of the members
of the Board and the summary of the policy is as follows:

(1)  selection of Board members will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2)  the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the
diversity policy.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.
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Professional Development of the Directors

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2015, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng
Xiang Yang, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Guo Cheng, Mr. Bau Siu Fung, Ms. Fan Qing,
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating any suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the year
ended 31 December 2015 falls within the following band:

RMB 1,000,000 or below

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor's Remuneration

The Company engaged KPMG as its external auditor for the year ended
31 December 2015. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature
and the service charges of non-audit services for reviewing interim results
to be performed by KPMG and considered that these non-audit services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the auditor. There was
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no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the fee payable to KPMG
in respect of its statutory audit services provided to the Company was
RMB1,580,000. Fees for non-audit services for the same period was
RMB500,000.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group's particular needs and the risks to which they are exposed.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. Qualified management of the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary
Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the Shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.sheentai.com
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its Shareholders
and the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investors. A shareholders
communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code
provision E.1.4 of the Code.
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Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly
to the Company through the following e-mail: ivan.bau@sheentai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address:  Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre. No.18 Fenwick Street,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board
and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above
in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’ Right to Convene an
Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the articles of Association of the Company, no
person (other than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.
Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “Year”).

Principal Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Business Review

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” as set out on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the
Group is engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

Price fluctuation in major raw materials may have a
material effect on the Group's performance

The major raw materials for production of the Group are polypropylene
and imported BOPP films. Any substantial increase in prices of
polypropylene and/or imported BOPP films may adversely affect the
profitability of the Group if the Group is unable to pass all or part of such
increase to its customers.

The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain major
suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they fail to make
timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to source from other
suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner, the operation of the
Group could be delayed. The relationship between the Group and its
customers could also be adversely affected as a result of any such delays,
which could in turn materially and adversely affect the business operations
and financial performance of the Group.
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The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a material
effect on the business and performance of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in USD and RMB. The Group does not engage in any
exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the exchange rates of
RMB and USD may have an adverse effect on the results of operations and
financial condition of the Group. Appreciation of the value of USD may
increase the costs of the Group and thus subject the Group to increased
competition from domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value
of RMB may adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net
assets and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of the
Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the turnover will continue to be
derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations and
prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic, political and
legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the PRC differs from the
economies of most developed countries in many respects, including the
extent of government involvement, the level of development, the growth
rate, and government control of foreign exchange. The Group cannot
predict whether changes in the PRC's political, economic and social
conditions, laws, regulations and policies will have any material adverse
effect on the current or future business, results of operation or financial
condition of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Compliance with Laws and
Regulations

The Group is committed to maintaining sustainable working practices
and pays close attention to ensure all resources are efficiently utilized. The
Group strives to become an environmental-friendly corporation by saving
electricity and encouraging recycling of office supplies and other materials.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors
are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Directors recognizes that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and has
ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through various
channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to
obtain their feedback and suggestions.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 72
of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HK$0.02 per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$0.08 per share before
the effect of the share subdivision).

Closure of the Register of Members

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM"), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 10 May 2016 (Tuesday) to 11 May 2016 (Wednesday), both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
The record date will be 11 May 2016 (Wednesday). In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30
p.m. on 9 May 2016 (Monday).
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For determining entitlement to the proposed final dividend (if approved
at the AGM), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 17 May 2016 (Tuesday) to 18 May 2016 (Wednesday), both days
inclusive. The record date will be 18 May 2016 (Wednesday). In order
to qualify for the entitlement of the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2016 (Thursday).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are
set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements in this annual report
and the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2012, is set out on
page 184. This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
approximately HK$326.5 million (2014: approximately HK$92.5 million)
have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this annual
report.
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Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investment

Disposal of the Equity Interest of Jiangsu Shuntai
Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd.

On 15 January 2015, Sheen China Group Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Chinese Hongkong
International Tobacco Group Co., Limited (the “Purchaser”) entered into
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the
51% equity interest in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company”) at a consideration of
RMB325,000,000, which were satisfied in cash (the “Disposal”). Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Company does not hold any interest in
the Target Company and the Target Company ceases to be a subsidiary of
the Company.

The Purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Jinjia Color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia"), which holds the remaining
49% equity interest in the Target Company before the Disposal and thus
a substantial shareholder and a connected person of the Group before
the Disposal. The Purchaser is an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia and hence
a connected person at the subsidiary level (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company under the Listing Rules. The Disposal therefore
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal exceeds 75%, the Disposal
constitutes a very substantial disposal for the Company pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and the Shareholders' approval requirements.

The Disposal had been approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 March
2015. On 16 April 2015, the registration of transfer of the equity interest
of Jiangsu Shuntai with the Jiangsu Administration for Industry and
Commerce has been completed on 16 April 2015.

For details of the Disposal, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 January 2015, 9 March 2015 and 16 April 2015 and
the circular of the Company dated 17 February 2015.
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Engineering, Procurement and Construction (“EPC")
Contract For the Construction of a Photovoltaic Power
Project in Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province

On 30 April 2015, Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Company
Limited (“Xuzhou Sheentai”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, obtained approval from Xuzhou Development and
Reform Commission for the construction of a photovoltaic power project
(the "Photovoltaic Power Project”). The Photovoltaic Power Project
is located in Wei Ji Town, Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
with an expected power capacity of 15 megawatts (“"MW"). The total
investment amount is approximately RMB120,000,000. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 April 2015.

On 2 July 2015, Xuzhou Sheentai entered into an EPC contract (the “EPC
Contract”) with TBEA Xinjiang New Energy Company Limited (“Xinjiang
New Energy”). Pursuant to the EPC Contract, Xinjiang New Energy, acting
as the contractor, will provide EPC services to Xuzhou Sheentai (as the
owner) for the construction of the Photovoltaic Power Project at the
aggregate consideration of RMB120,528,000. The Photovoltaic Power
Project is located in Wei Ji Town, Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC with an expected power capacity of approximately 16.74MW.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in respect of the transactions contemplated under the EPC
Contract exceeded 5% but less than 25%, the EPC Contract and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute discloseable transaction
of the Company and is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempted from Shareholders' approval under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules.

For details of the EPC Contract, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 2 July 2015 and 28 December 2015.

Acquisition of the Entire Issued Share Capital of Rise
Power Limited involving Issue of Convertible Bond

On 12 October 2015, the Company (as purchaser), Li Xiu Yun and Mr. Bao
Guang Qing, Mr. Du Jian Feng, Mr. Hu Yu Rui and Mr. Mei Jin Ping (together
with Li Xiu Yun, as the guarantors) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which
Li Xiu Yun conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital of Rise Power Limited
at the consideration of HK$90,000,000 (the “Consideration”), which
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shall be settled by the Company by way of issue of the convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (the “Convertible Bond”) to Li
Xiu Yun (or her nominee) on the completion date. Upon completion, the
Company will hold the entire issued share capital of Rise Power Limited
which will in turn indirectly own the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Yi
Er Shan Photovoltaic Electricity Company Limited.

As all the relevant percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
respect of the transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement are less than 5% and the Consideration shall be satisfied by
way of issue of the Convertible Bond, the Sale and Purchase Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a share
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempt from
shareholders' approval under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2015, the parties to the Sale and Purchase Agreement
entered into the supplemental agreement to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement to extend the long stop date for the transactions contemplated
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement from 31 December 2015 to 30
June 2016 (or such later date as the parties to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement may agree in writing).

For details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 October 2015 and 31
December 2015.

Approval For the Construction of a 1ISMW Photovoltaic
Power Project in Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province

On 4 November 2015, Xuzhou Sheentai obtained the approval from
Xuzhou Development and Reform Commission (the “Commission”)
for the construction of a 15 megawatts photovoltaic power project (the
“15MW Photovoltaic Power Project”). The 15MW Photovoltaic Power
Project is located in Wei Ji Town, Wei Ning County, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC with an expected power capacity of 15MW. The total investment
amount is approximately RMB120,000,000.

Together with the first approval obtained from the Commission on 30
April 2015 (details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 April 2015), Xuzhou Sheentai is entitled to construct
photovoltaic power project in Jiangsu Province, the PRC with an aggregate
power capacity of 30 MWs.
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For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 4 November 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant investment
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Material Related Parties Transactions

The material related party transactions in relation to the key management
personnel remuneration for the Directors as disclosed in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report are connected
transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.95 of the
Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions in relation to the amount due to
controlling Shareholder and Director — Mr. Guo Yumin as disclosed in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report
are connected transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material related
party transactions disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report did not fall under the definition of
“connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as
the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 4 February 2015, Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.
("Qingdao Ener”) (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into an agreement with Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao Justo”) (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which Qingdao
Justo shall purchase not more than 1,089.45 tonnes of cigarette films
from Qingdao Ener for a period from the date of the Agreement
until 31 December 2015 with a total consideration of not more than
RMB24,891,556.04 (including value added tax).
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As at the date of the Agreement, the equity interests of Qingdao Justo
were owned indirectly as to 30% by Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen lJinjia”), while Shenzhen Jinjia also held 49% equity
interests in Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co.,
Ltd (“Jiangsu Shuntai”) (the then indirect 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company). Qingdao Justo was hence an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia and
thus a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules for the Agreement was less than 5%, the Agreement was
subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but was exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders' approval requirements.

Upon completion of the disposal of the 51% equity interest in Jiangsu
Shuntai (details of which are set out in the section headed “Material
Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant Investment” above), the Company
does not hold any interest in Jiangsu Shuntai. Accordingly, Qingdao Justo
has ceased to be an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia and a connected person
of the Company with effect from 1 January 2015 and the transaction
contemplated under the Agreement ceases to be a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transaction and confirm that the transaction has
been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Subsequent Events

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to 31
December 2015 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

Grant of Share Options

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to subscribe for
a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 June 2012.

Among the share options granted above, 2,100,000 share options were
granted to the Directors to subscribe for a total of 2,100,000 shares of the
Company. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 September
2015 in relation to the adjustment to the share options upon the
subdivision of the share of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015.

The Placing

On 6 February 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Orient Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”), whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best effort
basis, a maximum of 83,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each (the “Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees which
are independent third parties at a price of HK$2.66 per Placing Share
(net placing price of HK$2.55 per placing share) (the “Placing”). The
Placing was completed on 26 February 2015. The net proceeds from the
Placing are intended to be used for (i) the repayment of loan; (ii) capital
injection into Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd. (BE&HFHE
R E]), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, for its second
production line which has commenced production since December 2014;
(iii) acquisition of land use right for development of properties; and (iv)
capture of any future investment opportunities. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 6 February 2015 and 26
February 2015.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
73% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 33% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 63% of the total purchases for the Year and purchase from
the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
51% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)

Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Mr. Guo Cheng (appointed on 20 May 2015)
Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Mr. He Lijun (resigned on 15 January 2015)

Mr. Huang Bo (resigned on 24 September 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s article of association (the
“Articles”), any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/her appointment
and any Director appointed by the Board as an additional Director shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation.
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Pursuant to articles 112 of the Article, Mr. Guo Cheng will retire as
Director at the AGM, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election
at the AGM.

Pursuant article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, Mr. Bau Siu Fung
and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix will retire as Directors at the AGM, and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Bau Siu Fung, all being
executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 13 July 2015 and may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
13 July 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months’ written notice.

Mr. Guo Cheng, being an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
20 May 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months' written notice.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, being an executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 13 July 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at
least three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Biographies of Directors and Other Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 32 of this annual report.

Directors Emoluments

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.
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Interests of Directors in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The Board has established a committee (the “Committee”) comprising
all the independent non-executive Directors which was delegated with
the authority to review the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
("Sheentai BVI") and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”) in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The Committee was not aware of
any non-compliance of the Non-competition Undertakings given by
Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the year ended 31 December 2015 and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo has
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in
the PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$912 million.

EERNEHNES

ARBREEAHMBERAGETEEAESRETHE
BEENEREARER - WARAKFELER IR
FREANEFMEEDAERNEREL °

AR B SHE AT E R R RIZERBR S E B
AR ANEELEFLEAIERRL ©

EEEN

REE AW BT L REFAEES RART 2 ERH A
DEBZEERTBRIIEZEH -

EENGFEBNES

EFSHSANRETHEA ERL LR HER
SRZNER [ SR A5 PN B P BE AE P B IR SR R R T S RO SR 7%
A (R o

EESCNUBHEEBYIFATESHANNEESR
(Z8®]) HERERTIBEREEZBRERAA
([Sheentai BVI]) &3S ER A4 ([ERE4E]) 722012
£ 6 A 28 A H Sheentai BVI }& 3B 5 4 5T 7 A K 7 72K
RENTHFZHOPIEEOTRFEH ([ THRBR
#]) c REZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFEREEAFR
HEIE - & &2~ 4% Sheentai BVI & 385 £ EH
B TR FAEATMERBR - BVIRHTESEE
R BTBRFAHRAREMEEAFHRAL  FE
BETEFHEENTHRIFAS -

BIRETE
REBLEFRBRFLENBRRERRARSTEIAR
EAEBNFRNAEEKREES REHIMEATESTEIA
REEFBHES - I F RN EFBHRAFRAL
B BEERERMTE21 ©

A7 R

RIEHESHERRAEN - XA ATMN2015F 12 A31H
RS IREELOABII2EESBT -



56

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Directors’ Report

=

e

Directors’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(a

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares and the underlying Shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature

g MHE

Mr. Guo Yumin

("Mr. Guo") (Note 1)
BER(BEED Rt EE R (M 1)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)
EnEaAWT2)

Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4)

BB e (A1at3 R 4)
Interest of spouse (Note 5)
Bo B (i 5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3)
E=fa A Hi23)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)

Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia")
BER([BExx))

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

(“Mr. Zeng") E=EE A (Hite)
M5 (B EED
Mr. Bau Siu Fung Beneficial owner (Note 7)
(“Mr. Bau") BEnlERA (K52 7)
/N2 ([ ]) Interest of spouse (Note 8)

FoiBts (et 8)

Interest of a controlled corporation

EERNRG - HERORESZNESZN

KA

(a)

M2015F 12 A31H » ARREFHZRTTH
ABRARAKEFMAEEZE (E&REF
MEEGEH ([HEFERBEHRG ) EXVE) KL
5 RO RESS - BEAREES K
EIEFIEXVEFE 7 8D R E AR 7] MEEZ
FTEiER MoA B (BIEIREBES R REKAIZE
ISR & ESR AR 2 TSR R) » 3k
BIRIE B R HAE (515 58 352 IR B R R s& 16 AT
EECMAERS AR - SRR _ET R B F &%
1027 ERARERHEITEFR HIZLESTRA
MEARR R RS AR

() REBEROzHFAERRSD

Number of

Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
interested interest

eS|
ERRA R AL
HERHEE N
1,200,000,000 59.77%
188,078,164 9.37%
6,000,000 0.30%
1,388,078,164 69.14%
6,000,000 0.30%
4,000,000 0.20%
3,100,000 0.15%
400,000 0.02%
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Number of
SETCEHET
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested interest
B BEH #EZED
EEnE 55, e ERERHOHE N
Mr. Guo Cheng Beneficial owner (Note 9) 2,350,000 0.12%
SRS A4 EmEEAWZ9)
Interest of spouse (Note 10) 47,656,000 2.37%
Tt s (M1t 10)
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan”) Beneficial owner (Note 11) 800,000 0.04%
eiErt ([Bzt]) BEmEAAN B 11)
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Beneficial owner (Note 12) 800,000 0.04%
(“Mr. Fong") EnEaAHE12)
AREE(FEE]D
Lo Wa Kei, Roy (“Mr. Lo”)  Beneficial owner (Note 13) 800,000 0.04%
EEE(EXE]D BEmEAA (W5 13)
(i) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated (i) REBEEIEEERGZHR

Corporation

Name of Director

ESHR

Name of associated

corporation

HBOEE &

Capacity/Nature

L4703

Number of
share held/
interested
Fi¥®E
EEROEE

Percentage of
interest

BEADL

Notes:

Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner
L EnlEEA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse
Bt (Ha5) BB

Bi%E
Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Sheentai 1.

BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
1,200,000,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the purpose of the
SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.

100%

100%

20 % 4 &F %5 % A Sheentai BVIH) & 28 2 3 17
A Ett RIEFHFRBEEE - 365%E
A %48 B 3 E (B Sheentai BV B 00 T A
1,200,000,000 Bx B D R HE B #E 2 - LR ER

Sheentai BVIFyMff —E F
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2. These 188,078,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent:

(a)

(b)

the 18,100,000 Shares owned by Mr. Guo;

the 1,100,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Guo upon full exercise of the options granted
to him under the pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 22 June 2012 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”, each share option granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is referred to as “Pre-IPO Share Option”);
and

the 168,878,164 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Guo upon full exercise of the convertible bonds
in the outstanding principal amount of HK$70,000,000 at the
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.4145 per Share held by Mr.
Guo.

3. These 6,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:

(a)

(b)

the 4,900,000 Shares beneficially owned by Ms. Xia Yu; and

the 1,100,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Ms. Xia Yu upon full exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to her.

4. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is deemed, or
taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which
Ms. Xia is interested.

5 Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is deemed, or
taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which
Mr. Guo is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

6. These 4,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:

(a

(b)

the 900,000 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Zeng;

the 1,100,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Zeng upon full exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to him; and

the 2,000,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Zeng upon full exercise of the share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 22 June 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”,
each share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is
referred to as “Share Option”) to him.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

These 3,100,000 underlying Shares represent:

(€)] the 1,100,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Bau upon full exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to him; and

(b) the 2,000,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Bau upon full exercise of the Share Options
granted to him.

These 400,000 Shares were held by Ms. Chim Mei Ling Angel.
Mr. Bau is the spouse of Ms. Chim. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr.
Bau is deemed or taken to be interested in the Shares held by Ms.
Chim.

These 2,350,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:
(a) the 200,000 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Guo Cheng;

(b) the 1,600,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Guo Cheng upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him; and

(0) the 550,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Guo Cheng upon full exercise of the Pre-IPO
Share Options granted to him.

These 47,656,000 Shares represent the Shares owned by Ms. Lam Ka
Lee. Mr. Guo Cheng is the spouse of Ms. Lam. Accordingly, Mr. Guo
Cheng is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which
Ms. Lam is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to her.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Fong upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Lo upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.
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19 o PR EBRLTHEE - Filt - ShEH
REFEIEHIT S - S EWR BE ER
TIBAEENERNDTHEAER -
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THRENEREECTERAERERETH
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(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2015, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:

The Company

(b) HEEEFTH - M2015F12AH318 L FAL
(EX@BAEBRECARFEETIEZSTEA
BERIN) RIR D S ABBEAR (R B R IEE 5 K A
EIEBIEXVEDE 2 RE 3D IR ABRAR
AR AR ENERSAE - KEFESEE
BB AR AT RAEABER T EREBEMA
K B A R R R E E IR E/E MR
TE{E 10% 3 JA_EAIRERS ¢

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of

Capacity/Nature of interest interested shareholding

B EEME

Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner

BEEBEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

ks BA
EmROBE REE DA

1,200,000,000 59.77%

B EXXFriREE SN - 2015512 A31 8 - BHEE
AT (RRAREFRESTRABRIN MSAARE
PR S AR A AR A7 Hh G ZE AR IR 35 55 M EA 1K1 8 XV
HE2RFEIDBZIEXMARRABNEE - HERALRR
FIRIBB ARG ENE 336 (KR EFE 2 E M
ERAR -
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures EEWEROIESNER

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests B EX [ZEE R H - HEKR D R ESH = IOX
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, & | —BF#HEEIN  RAFEEMER - A 7
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,  HEZERAF] - WE A R SkFE R E Q73 &S] 7 10
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable  ZHf - FARBEE X HEITHRA B EE R A E
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to  BUHEZAR A RIS A H Ab)E A B R A IR sk EHmE
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of % °

the Company or any other body corporate.

Share Option Schemes R AEETE
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) EXRDBBREHBRESE
Pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share BIZ20124F 6 A 22 BERAHE X AFREERIE
Option Scheme”) adopted on 22 June 2012, the Company had iR S ([BRAFABERBRETE]) - &
granted options to subscribe for 10,000,000 Shares (which were AR B #5 7] 52 & 10,000,000 B i 17 (L E A A
adjusted to 40,000,000 Shares after the share subdivision of the AR IFAR 2015569 A 25 HAERBEE HESE
Company becoming effective on 25 September 2015) to employees, 40,000,000 IR 7)) B IR HER T AL BES
directors, consultants and advisers of our Group. BE - HAARER -
Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under RAFHRAE - BRIEE X AREE A ERERT
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report: SIRARTTENBEREFIFHIINT
Number of  Outstanding Outstanding
options as at as at
granted on 1 January Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the date
Name of grantee 22 June 2012 2015 since date since date since date  of this report
R2012F R2015% of grant of grant of grant i
6A228 1B18 BEREH AERAE AERAY KHERH
BEARE ERBRELS I RATHE BB BEZH BEXK e AT
Director EZ
Mr. Guo Yumin PER%AE 2,000,000 1,500,000 400,000 — — 1,100,000
Ms. Xia Yu Efxt 2,000,000 1,500,000 400,000 — — 1,100,000
Mr. Bau Siu Fung HNEEAE 2,000,000 1,500,000 400,000 — — 1,100,000
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang Bk 2000000 1,500,000 400,000 — — 1,100,000
Mr. Guo Cheng il 1,000,000 750,000 200,000 — — 550,000
Employees ESRER 31,000,000 23,905,000 4,545,000 — — 19,360,000
and advisers
Total 5t 40,000,000 30,655,000 6,345,000 — — 24,310,000
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Note:

The subscription price for Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$0.6029 per Share (which had been adjusted to HK$0.1507 per share
after the share subdivision of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015), being the amount of the combined net asset value of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 as stated in the audited combined financial
statements of the Group attributable to each share (assuming 400,000,000
shares of the Company are in issue as at 31 December 2011). Options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall vested in 5 tranches
in the proportion of 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% on 14 July 2013, 14
July 2014, 14 July 2015, 14 July 2016 and 14 July 2017, and shall expire on
13 July 2018, being the sixth anniversary of the date of initial listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange.

A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is set out as follows.

On 22 June 2012, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was approved by the
then sole shareholder of the Company.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees,
directors, consultants and advisers of the Group and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options can be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 10,000,000, representing
approximately 2.44% of the total issued shares of the Company as at the
date of listing. Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 shares
of the Company (which were adjusted to 40,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025
each after the shares subdivision of the Company becoming effective on
25 September 2015) had been granted by the Company under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme before the date of listing. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, no further options can be granted after the date of
listing.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$0.6029 per share (which was adjusted to HK$0.1507
each after the share subdivision of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015), being the amount of the combined net asset value of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 as stated in the audited combined financial
statement of the Group attributable to each share of HK$0.01 each (assuming
400,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each are in issue as at 31 December 2011).

Options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are exercisable during
the period as set out in the paragraph headed “Outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options” under Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 29
June 2012.

Save as determined by our Board and provided in the offer of the grant of
the relevant options, the exercise of the options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are not subject to any performance targets being met.

B

R

BRAFRBENERETE TRONIBEEARATR
0.6029 BT (AR RIRGK #F AR 201569 A 25H
EREEABREEMR0.150787T) » IAEBAOKE
FTAE B mEPATEERRMDEAARERR 2011
F12A31BNEHEEFENEE(RENR2011F
12 A 31 BE %77 400,000,000 B A DRI ) » 1RIE
BARAFREENERET SR NERERD T
10% * 15% * 20% * 25% % 30% K LL 515 Bl 2013
F7H148 2014F7H14H - 201578148 -
20167 A14B K2017F7A14BEFERA
W 2018F 7 A 13 HEHA (BN MR R Pk L
KB BIRBET /N F) o

BR AR E BB 8 Z R R E 8
P

MN2012F6 8228 * EXRAHEEFERESEE
TEARD T E M — AR ©

BRARBEEINBREAENENEERARBEE
A ARAKENES - EF  BAA L RERREHR
FSMER) A S B AR B TS AR -

RIEE XA E R BB ARE T 2 IR L AERE B IR &
=ARMDEE 410,000,000 8% - HHER M HEAQT
BRI ARENL 2.44% - R ETEERT - &AQF]
REERARZEEERET SR BRERER
110,000,000 f& A& 2 &) B 7 (£ £ 201549 A 25 H
AN AR 1R 40 A 1% 5% B 40,000,000 IR B AR EIE
0.0025 & TLHIRR D) o BIF B R A& Al AR T
Bl ETT AR TR E SRR -

BRAFAHENBREAZ TARRRNNREESR
h20.6029 7T (R EAQBRRMDIFMR 201569 A
25 AAEREBEAREFR0.15078 ) - IALET
R HIERERPAEHEAR0.01 B TR B
REER2011F12 A31 HWAHEEFENERE(R
RP2011412 A31HE 31T 400,000,000A8 & 4%0.01
BITRIAR ARG ) °

BHRAFREENBRENETERENRNARIBEA
20124 6 A 29 ARBIRERMER A [RBEINIEIX
AR ERTERE | —EBRFTEEREITE -

BREFSSAETRAMBRENREDZOERE
S RIBE R AR E AT RITT R AR B A
EREMRRARE -
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(b)

& #&tt

The amount payable by the grantee of an option under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
commencing on 22 June 2012, being the date on which the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was adopted by the Company and ending on the day
immediately prior to 13 July 2012, being the date of listing of the shares
of the Company, after which period no further options will be granted
thereunder but in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the exercise of any
options granted.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. A summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of
the Group and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of the Group, options to subscribe for such number of Shares
as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may
be, the independent non-executive Directors) from time to
time on the basis of his contribution or potential contribution
to the development and growth of the Group.

(b)

N NR H R 2R B AR ARIBE R AR
BENBIE NS/ BT

BRAMBERERETEIEE 2012496 A22 8 (A
RARRMNE R AREENEREAZBEH BER
BE2012F7 A 138 (BIAARKRG LW BEH) A&
LE AR AR + 1% BRI i — AP RE AR IS R UL 1R
H o BE A ARARERIERE BRI M A E
H DB+ R 3 AR LATT BT B (T (] B AR AE o

B IRt B

$@immu¢6ﬁna%m—ﬁ$%%ﬁ%
(TEERRHERT 2 )) - BBRARHERT 8] = B ISR R IE 1
HIBEZ ST

1. BREERE A

AR E AR AR B ES - ARAE
EER (2R LR  EF  EK@AL
B - D - AeR - e - KE -
B - ARBHARGHERRHBEINE
By AR IEEN AR B RTEBI LA -

E=en2ENERIRARREARAE
WA BIGRRAREBERES (2R
B #F  FRALRERRIAEEE
MERRRIAEEEM D HE - AE
R IR BR - BEBAER
e R LB AE AR R 2 B I
(AIRIR B AT B IR E ) ©

ER2EEERTFBERENELAER
DIRBEEE (SRIBERME - BULIFH
TEE) MEREBEESAKENERNE
BHEBKEERBIMAE
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of listing of the
shares of the Company (or such numbers of shares as shall
result from a sub-division or a consolidation of the shares
of the Company from time to time), i.e. 40,000,000 shares
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015, each of
the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company was sub-
divided into four sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the
“Shares Subdivision”). As such, the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company
is adjusted from 40,000,000 to 160,000,000.

Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 shares
of the Company (which were adjusted to 40,000,000
shares of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares Subdivision)
were granted under the pre-IPO share option scheme of the
Company.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options
to subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company (which were adjusted to
58,400,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares
Subdivision) were granted to certain Directors and employees
of the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company was
101,600,000, representing approximately 5.06% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

IRIEEIR I 1 &) ] T TR (D AR L

RIEREE R HERT 8 R AN A R EA E At AT 21 7]
FERLEREFERO &= EE BEFT
BBRAARRGN LT BHBEBITRER
R 10% (AR BIRR D TR 4 sk & OF
BEERNBBARMHEER) - B140,000,000
BEA% (D - 15 ET BB AR B HITRG
#110% ° 20159 A 258 » KA AR
ARG EEO.01 B T FIR AR FE
BEEITRABETRO DT ATKRES
BRI (B 0.0025 7 7T /I 3 4B A% 17 ([ B 10 47
1) o Eit - BEBERERT S KA R RIME
A E TSI A RE IR H B AR B B D =
2 H B 40,000,000 [%#8%% 4 160,000,000

B e

= NN = /NN =T )
EEEEBRERBEA G AR
10,000,000 A% B 1 (EL M A% 0 $r 40 18 3 2
% 40,000,000 f% & A% T 1B 0.0025 /& T &Y

Bt -

R2015F 1 5298 - B & B8 & # 5t
g BEMARRETESREERTA
51 14,600,000 17 8 A% 7 - LA 3R B8 48 51
14,600,000 J& A< A 7] & % E {E0.017%5
THERAR(ERKROFAZREARS
58,400,000 [% & % [ {8 0.0025 7 7T #) i%
7))

Fit - RAFREE - RIBEREAS R
AR RMEATEMET SR H TR D LA
101,600,000 f% * I ARNFHREBARRRE
EITIRAMA)5.06% °
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer
of the grant of the relevant options, there is no performance
target which must be achieved before any of the options can
be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance
of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant of the option.

8.
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9. Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the
date on which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally
adopted by the Company) and shall expire at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the
tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated earlier by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options
to subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to certain
Directors and employees of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. Among the share options granted above,
2,100,000 share options were granted to the Directors to
subscribe for a total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
24 September 2015 in relation to the adjustment to the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme upon the
share subdivision of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted

under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

9.

RIS &)y B AR

B ETEIBE2012F6 228 (AR
AIB G MRS R AERT 81 B B8R e+ 4R HR
BDEB  RIEFERRAE LEARA
BRERIRFERIE - BRIREETERHBEF
Al — A& % B K& X AR Em -

M201541 8298 d R B & H
14,600,000 J% A< A 7] & % ™ {E0.017%5
JT H9 E 38 A% 79 14,600,00019 B8 A% HE
ERBEAQAMNBRESESIETETA
REIBEERIES - RATREBRES
2,100,000 7 BERRETIR TEE - ARE
4 ££2,100,000 AR BIRR D © FFIEFEL
BMAAF HEA201551 A29BHIAE -

E2HEARABHEA2015F9 A24HH
NE - RAREBEARQF R IFARL 2015
9 25 BAME 2 BIRERE -

RAREBH - RIFBEAEET B B AR
TTERBBREFREIIT -

Numberof  Outstanding Outstanding

options granted asat as the date
on 29 January 1 January Exercised Cancelled Lapsed of this
2015 2015 since date since date since date report
R2015% R2015% of grant of grant of grant REHE
Name of grantee 1529 1818 BERAH BERAH BERAH AR &
ARALS ERBREHA WRATHE BT B BAM i

Director EZ
Mr. Guo Cheng Pars 1,600,000 - - - = 1,600,000
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang EmELE 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
M. Bau Siu Fung LN Lt 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Fong Wo, Felx YL 800,000 - - - - 800,000
Ms. Fan Qing =t 800,000 - = - = 800,000
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EERLE 800,000 - - - = 800,000
Employees ESRER 50,400,000 — — — — 50,400,000
and advisers

Total A 58,400,000 — = = = 58,400,000
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately 345 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The
Group also established the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme to incentivize the senior management and employees,
further details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Schemes” in this report. When reviewing and determining the
specific remuneration packages for the executive Directors and senior
management, the Company takes into consideration factors such as their
individual performance, qualification, experience and seniority, salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Group determines the staff's
remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and work experience.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 33 to 42 of this annual report.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to article 191 of the articles of association of the Company, every
Director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this annual report as
required under the Listing Rules.

EBEREHMBE
M2015F12A318 - AEBERLN345E 2B E
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SREEEBNERFNALE  ARREEELE
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Auditor

KPMG has acted as auditors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015. The Company has not changed its external auditors
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report.

KPMG will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the

reappointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 71 to 183, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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B AZBENRE ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and
of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

|—L—| N\ /
FEEmK

BHZE2015F12 A31 HILFE (ABTTREA)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue L ON 3 469,241 712,534
Cost of sales SHERR (338,287) (430,286)
Gross profit EF 130,954 282,248
Other income E A A 4 13,185 25,950
Distribution costs AR (17,665) (14,777)
Administrative expenses TRAX (89,364) (76,354)
Other operating expenses HhEems (2,649) (8,100)
Profit from operations REHF 34,461 208,967
Net income from disposal of a subsidiary ST A RLFUA 362,125 =
Finance costs EUR %N 5(a) (15,422) (18,366)
Profit before taxation BAD@EF 5 381,164 190,601
Income tax FTiSis 6(a) (54,634) (39,497)
Profit for the year FREA 326,530 151,104
Attributable to: BUTF ALY

Equity shareholders of the Company RAEE=RARR 326,530 92,507

Non-controlling interests JEIERR A =S = 58,597
Profit for the year FREF 326,530 151,104
Earnings per share sRER
Basic (HKD) BERCGETT) 10 0.16 0.06
Diluted (HKD) 5% (o) 10 0.15 0.05
The notes on pages 79 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FIERE 79 = 183 B SR M s B AN 5 3 S5 6Y

AARCERD ©
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
iraBa AR

BHZE2015F12 A31 HILFE (WBTTREA)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Profit for the year FREA 326,530 151,104

Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FRAHEMEE
(after tax and reclassification adjustments) ~ (HIBRBER EH 5 EABK)

Items that may be reclassified HETREHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEWER ¢
Exchange differences on translation of BREWE AR EHRE
financial statements of subsidiaries RIPE =R 9(a) (38,684) 1,145
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHESREE
net movement in the fair value reserve NHEF BT E 9(b) - (3,505)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FRHEMZE (38,684) (2,360)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZHEWZARE 287,846 148,744
Attributable to: BUF AT BEAG
Equity shareholders of the Company AN FIESR 287,864 89,861
Non-controlling interests TR - 58,883
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEKEARE 287,864 148,744
The notes on pages 79 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FIEE 79 = 183 E R SR s R AN 5 S5 6Y

AR ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

2015412 A31 B (LAB T AER)

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - BB RH 11 354,386 188,573
Interests in leasehold land held for own RIECEHSEIES A
use under operating lease HIH & + AR 11 21,287 23,148
Intangible assets mEE 13 1,082 125
Other non-current assets EMIEREEE 1,885 =
Deferred tax assets FIEFIAE EE 23 8,278 6,473
386,918 218,319
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through AFER 2 BEZHEA
profit & loss EHER SR EE 14 83,410 -
Inventories ra 15 416,677 323,555
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE MR IA K H At FE W IR 16 329,356 186,383
Restricted cash ZRHERE 19 3,628 18,950
Assets classified as held for sale PEAREFEEE 28 = 330,650
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRe&EEAEE 17 194,410 117,049
1,027,481 976,587
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 FERTRRIA R EoAth FE A~ FRIE 18 315,854 221,455
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEX 19 95,789 211,273
Financial liabilities at fair value through AT ETEBEHEESEA
profit or loss EHERNTRAE 20 1,403 1,891
Current taxation BNEAT I8 23 4,268 2,982
Liabilities classified as held for sale PEAREFEEE 28 = 139,770
417,314 577,371
Net current assets REEEFEE 610,167 399,216
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 997,085 617,535
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
REPBARRE (@)

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans and overdrafts RITER LB 19 665 878
Convertible bond AR ES 20 69,198 69,159
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 23 9,872 10,770
79,735 80,807
NET ASSETS FEE 917,350 536,728
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARREHE
Share capital N 24 5,019 4,173
Reserves Bl 24 912,331 437,695
Total equity attributable to equity ARARERBRR
shareholders of the Company EihEgEs 917,350 441,868
Non-controlling interests FE RS = 94,860
TOTAL EQUITY SR 917,350 536,728

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March BB HEE M 201643 H30 BEEF AW T

2016. AIE -
) )
Xia Yu ) 518 )
) Directors ) EE
Bau Siu Fung ) /e )
) )
The notes on pages 79 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FIEMNE 79 £ 183 B BIRK I F R A % WS 7Y

AERERD o



IR B ARDF 75
—E-RFFH

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
R EmEEIR

BHZE2015F12 A31 HILFE (ABTTREA)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERRRER
Non-
Share Share Cpital ~ Statutory ~ Exchange  Fairvalue  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits ~ Subtotal  interests equity
e iERE  EXEE ATHERE  REEH
§/000 §/000 §/000 §1000 §1000
T T AT AT ThL
1 January 2014 R0UE1A18 4150 123,6% 70,027 37,340 11413 3505 132358 382489 89,741 472,30
Changes in equity for 2014 BENUERGES
Profitfor the year ERad - - - - - - Q507 9507 5857 151104
Other comprehensive income Efp2ENG 9 - - - - 89 (3509 - 64 8 (2360
Total comprehensive income g earat] = = = = 859 (3,505 92,507 89,861 58,883 148744
Dividends to shareholders kEks 24() - - - - - - (323 (332%3) (53764 (87.017)
Appropriation to statutory reserve AMTERRE 24 - - - 3174 - - B - - -
Shares issued under share option scheme R BB ERFEIET
v 2400 3 308 (1819 - - - - 1,408 - 1408
Equity setted share-based transactions ~ WARALELIR(3 A
ERNRS 24l - - 1,363 - - - - 1,363 - 1,363

At 31 December 2014 20145128318 4173 126,900 69,571 40,514 12,212 - 188438 441868 94860 536,728
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
ERREHR (|

HZE 2015412 A31 BIEFE CABTTAEN)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KARRERRES

Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium  reserve  reserve reserve profits  Subtotal interests equity
FER

Bx  BRGEE EARE  iERE  ERBE  REE it BE  8EE

§1000 §'000 §'000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000

TEn TErn TEr  TEn  TEx  TEn  TEn T TEn

1 January 2015 RO15E1518 4173 126900 69,571 40514 12212 188438 441,868 94860 536,728
Changes in equity for 2015 BE15FERET

Profit for the year Ehg - - - - - 3650 326530 - 326530
Other comprehensive income Efp2AkE 9 - - - - (38684) - (38684) - (38684)
Total comprehensive income 2EksEE - - - - (8684) 36530 287,846 - 81886
Placing of new shares REFR 240 830 211119 - - - - 19 - M9
Dividends to shareholders Faks 20b) - - - - - (0021 (40,027) (138) (40,765
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR - - - @ 1 nw 718 (90,1%8)  (83030)
Liguidation of a subsidiary HBAARE - - - (526) - (159 (205 (394 (6019
Appropriation to statutory reserve AMELERE 24 - - - 3,038 - (303 - - -
Shares issued under share option scheme B RIS 2IHR 24(0)) 16 3,276 (2.33) - - = 956 - 956
Equity settled share-based transactions ~~ RAEE DR RS 24(d)i) - - 9,685 - - - 9,685 = 9,685
At 31 December 2015 R2015612A31H 5019 341295 76,920 20,829 (19.284) 492571 917,350 - 917350
The notes on pages 79 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FIEMNE 79 £ 183 B MM BSIRER I F R A M H)

AERCERD o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HABRESRER

BHZE2015F12 A31 HILFE (ABTTREA)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Operating activities BEER
Cash generated from operations KEBIRE 17(b) 70,572 155,877
Income taxes paid BFEHR 23(a) (53,353) (61,197)
Net cash generated from operating activities E& EB TSR & FHE 17,219 94,680
Investing activities RETEE
Net proceeds from sale of a subsidiary HEMBR RS RIEFE 346,024 =
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets BEETEEK

and intangible assets | EERNIA (45,656) (22,294)
Payment for the construction of B KI5 80 3 Bk IR

solar power plants (152,506) -
Payment for the proposed acquisition SR AR AN R 2 O S *

of equity interest* (136,000) -
Proceeds from sale of other property, HEHEMYE - HER

plant and equipment RAERFIE 2 92
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale HERHHE

financial assets SEVEEMSHRIE - 29,679
Proceeds from sale of equity securities LEBEEBRHMENIE 23,192 =
Payment for the purchase of equity securities BEEERSFNNIE (105,706) =
Dividends received from investments in BEHIRERE

equity securities 516 1,549
Dividend received from a disposal subsidiary BB HERBARRKRE 56,423 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W HE T BB A ) - 830
Interest received BUFIE 6,103 2,419
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTA),/

investing activities ELXBHEFE (7,608) 12,275
Financing activities RMEED
Proceeds from borrowings B RRFTEI0E 131,603 451,224
Repayment of borrowings EEEN (218,297) (286,489)
Release of restricted cash for borrowings BRI 2R HIE IR 18,950 49,704
Restricted cash for borrowings ZERHIERRE (3,628) (18,950)
Proceeds from shares issued B TAR D TS RIE 212,905 1,408
Payment for redemption of convertible bond fB B AT R IR E 5T 30 - (95,000)
Interest paid EFE (20,422) (17,438)
Dividends paid ERE (40,765) (87,017)
Liquidation of a subsidiary WEBAREE (3,812) =
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

AN AN =1 2=
IZ\‘/ \/C\lfﬁi//lbi (%E)

HZE 2015412 A31 BIEFE CABTTAEN)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Net cash generated from/(used in) BETEELE
financing activities (FPR)B&FE 76,534 (2,558)
Net increase in cash and HekAELEE
cash equivalents 18 B 18 hnEEE 86,145 104,397
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1B1BHNRER
He%EER 117,049 61,179
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHTE (9,734) (311)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A31BHWEER
Re&ZE@EER 17(a) 193,460 165,265
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRAELEHEER
cash equivalents HIERRE D AT
Cash and bank balances R & RERITHE RS 17(a) 194,410 117,049
Cash and bank balances classified DERREHEEED
as assets held for sale Be MIRI TR 28 — 57,947
Total cash and bank balances e RIRITHEETR 194,410 174,996

4 All amounts have been collected as bill receivables due to termination of the

acquisition.

The notes on pages 79 to 183 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
TSR R M 5T

2015412 A31 B UABTTAER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and

revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 13 July 2012.

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXE5EEK(E)
(b) Basis of preparation and presentation of the (b) EINEERMLFEMBHRRNZS

consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), rounded to the nearest thousand. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except financial instruments classified
as available-for-sale (see note 2(e)), which are stated at their
fair value.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 2(w)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 29.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI E

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXE5EEK(E)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) KEATRIFERES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with notes 2(n)
or 2(o) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at lost less impairment losses (see
note 2(j)). Unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see note 2(w)).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or based on
a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
note 2(t)(v) and 2(t)(vi).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)). Dividend income from
equity securities calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies
set out in notes 2(t)(v) and 2(t)(vi), respectively.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(j)-

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

- Solar power plants 20 years
= Buildings 20 years
- Plant and machinery 10 — 20 years
- Office equipment and others 3 -5 years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and machinery and equipment
under installation and testing. Construction in progress is
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)). The cost includes cost of
construction, cost of purchased plant and equipment and
other direct costs plus borrowing costs which include interest
charges and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to finance these projects during the
construction period, to the extent that these are regarded as
an adjustment to borrowing costs (see note 2(v)).

Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time
as the assets are completed and substantially ready for their
intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(j)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form

of a lease.

0]

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term. The following operating leases
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are acquired and their estimated useful lives are as
follow:

= Leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases

50 years

2

EXRSFBER (8)

HEEE

11 75 55 [ 8 R % B PR A M AU 74 1 E BRI 2
A—ARZEREEEARB HH— K
FIRER - B IRREH(BE—BRZH—
RIR5)BRABEHE - EREER
HRPARENFEETT - MARZALHE
R AEHERNERTA -

()

(@

(ii)

HEFAKENEEND ]

BASERBEEERAMmMAAKE
HERBEERNBANDRER KL
BNEEDDRARBREMEER
B WEEREGENBRIEIR
B R EHTAEENEET DB

REME -

REHERX

HAREERARBELHERARN
BE  REEEFEROMKTINE
EFHMREN ST HRANRER
PR AFORR - WA ERER
HEBEMRSHNFN SRR
EERRS) o SUER R E R 50
WaERAERRE X MFHS #5HE
BRI SREREE D © RATHE IR E
EENEF BRENRER AR o

Y IR IR 48 & A & P s T AR
TIABEAREEHE R E - AT
ERFHARMNKLHESRER
HE S - BEETAI RS T

- REKEHERE
BEAMEE L

50 4

87



88

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI E

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j). Impairment of assets

0]

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events.

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXE5EEK(E)

() Impairment of assets (continued) () EEREGE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) ARAEFNEMEKRIRENR
and other receivables (continued) & (&)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

construction in progress;

prepaid interest in leasehold land classified as
being held under operating lease;

intangible assets; and

Investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)
@i

Inventories

Packaging materials manufacturing and trading

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Inventories (continued)

(ii) Property development

Inventories in respect of property development activities

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost and net realisable values are determined as

follows:

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified cost,
including the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies,
wages and other direct expenses, an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.
Completed property held for resale

In the case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible bond
Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
bonds is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Convertible bond (continued)

(n)

(o)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component
(continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having

been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contribution to
defined contributions retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(r)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
these benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group or Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or Company intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

(®

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the later of the signing of the sale
and purchase agreement and the completion of the
properties, which is taken to be the point in time when
the risks and rewards of ownership of the property
have passed to the buyer. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under forward sales deposits and instalments
received.

Sales of electricity

Revenue arising from the sale of electricity is recognised
in the accounting period when electricity is generated
and supplied to the provincial power grid. Revenue
excludes value added tax (“VAT") or other sales taxes.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EARE:HEZE(E&E)
(t) Revenue recognition (continued) (t) WARER(E)

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(v)

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
outside mainland China is Hong Kong dollars and the
functional currency of the subsidiaries in mainland China is
Renminbi. The results of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXKEETEEK(E)

(w) BESENERBEE

(w) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

WMR-IEERPEE(KREMER) IR
EE BB LR B E N TR AL AN
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LEERKMABAE -

UREEARE TSRS EHEAR
THER B B - TRAEERTH
T B VNGO T o
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B -

FERBEE(MEBEEATAAERNEE
HEE)AARAFERERN SRR
FRIH SRR EBRFTNERESHE - &
% BGRIRARAFEERERL -
FRBEE (T XM ETEERIN)
SEEHARAERASREQNFEREH
ERANR TS BERME A BRIKER T LARE
R o RAREMNARRRNHBHREME
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HEE  EEBMNMEANEE ©RE
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(x) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(0

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a)

(d)

(e)

V)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

2 EXGFEEE)

(x) BBEAL

(i)

(ii)

EUATERT » EALTHEIRRK
FERK B SRS B A Rk

(a)

(b)

(0)

A SR ARG AR

UAREEEERTESN X

RAEENAREEEREN
TEEREAEHKE -

HEATERMBERT - XEBEAE

=5 RaH -
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Erp B AR (BIRAF - W
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(d)

(e)

(9)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2

EXRSFBER (&)
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(y)

(2)
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARTDEBEE
(a) Revenue (@ WA

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and AEENETEZEFARENHESTER
supply of cigarette paper boxes, cigarette films and other 8 BEEEMTISZHAAAAER - AR
marketing films, development of properties and operation of FREAREMBE([HE])ZBERYERKE
photovoltaic power plants in the People’s Republic of China BNIRB UL o
(the “PRC").
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold less returns, WAREERIBEBERERE N
discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes. The EFRNEMEER - RAFENSEEK
amount of each significant category of revenue during the AR R T ¢

year is as follows:

Trading BEEES

— Packaging materials - BEME 75,639 16.1 46,323 6.5

— Others - Ht 6,245 1.3 = =
Sub-total NET 81,884 17.4 46,323 6.5
Manufacturing and sales EHBEME

of packaging materials

— Cigarette paper boxes - BERE - - 304,748 428

— Non-cigarette-related - FEBEER

packaging materials BEME 105,863 22.6 89,847 12.6

— Anti-counterfeiting films - P EiE 92,046 19.6 92,722 13.0

— Other cigarette films - BB R 189,295 40.4 178,894 25.1
Sub-total NET 387,204 82.6 666,211 93.5
Development of properties MR - - = =
Generation of photovoltaic HIRES

power 153 - - -

Total A&t 469,241 100.0 712,534 100.0
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were 2 (2014:
2) customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. In 2015 revenues from sales to
these customers, including sales to entities which are known
to the Group to be under common control with these
customers (i.e. the sales to different customers are viewed
as a single customer if the relevant sales were made to
various customers under common control), amounted to
approximately $285,586,000 (2014: $571,816,000). Details
of concentrations of credit risk arising from these customers
are set out in note 25(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed as below:

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments.

J Trading: this segment engages in trading of packaging
materials;

o Manufacturing and sales of packaging materials:
this segment engages in manufacturing and sales of
cigarette packaging films and non-cigarette-related
packing materials (e.g. films for packing straws, food,
cassettes and stationery tapes);

° Development of properties: this segment engages in
development and sales of residential properties; and

o Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity.

3 WARZEHERE (FE)

(a)

(b)

LONGE )

HE2015F12A3IBEFEAME
(2014%F : MB) BFHRZIEAEEK
AKBIB10% ° 2015F - MZERFHEE
f&mﬁfaé&(@%ﬁ(?ﬂxﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬂm
B BEB ST A ARG TR E S
ﬁﬂﬁé%(ﬂﬂfh*ﬁfﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁi‘ £ [A) 32
WAREFED - AlEE T IRES T
BRIEE—FF)) MU A A#) 285,586,000
JL (20144 : 571,816,0007C ) » H 3% %
BREMELMEESS BB FIBERHT
7t 25(a) °

BRARE T REGHE
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7R E2
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Be B EEREHAMEE RS I RKER

aﬁ?ZFHE’JEZEW*BE#E%“t—ﬁ g S

) 2 51 LA T PO A] R ¥Ry &P o

. BERS  WHHEE

BEYE

o  EHBEWE  WHMHEREE
HEMIETEEENBEEE (10
RERERE - Rm - MHHEE

KX BB RESER)

o  WMIEEE: M
mE R

D EBE R K EEE

. RREE - D EEHES -

111



112

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

&

TR IRt

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0]

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets. Segment liabilities include trade
creditors, accruals and bills payable attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is set out below.

3

I‘I&A&/-\ﬁﬂﬁmﬁ (IIIE.)

(b)

DEB2ER (&)

0]

DEEE  BERER

R R R E S NS A Ao
BRME  AEENERERER
BRIAT EREET R AT A SR ) BR (S
MEE  BERARE:

DEHEECRMBEN BREE

ERBEE - nHBEREENE
BUE N E IR B S H RS AR
RETERMENRBUALRERZAD
% BERITER

?wk

WA K FI X 208 7] B 7 BD P15 84
%EE&EZ%"*B%FEE’]%SE&EZ
ENAEIGEENERBEMESE
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDEEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DE2HK(])
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) 2HEE BERERSE(E)
Manufacturing and
sales of Development Generation of
Trading packaging materials of properties photovoltaic power Total
EHEENR
2015 2014 2015 215 2014
WI5% W4E WI5E ! W15% WIULE
(Restated) ‘
§'000 §1000
T
Revenue from external customers — RENBRFME 81884 4633 381204 666211 - - 153 - 75U
Reportable segment revenue ~~ TRHEABHA 81,884 4323 © 387204 666211 = = 153 - 469241 712534
Reportable segment gross profit - R HABEA 5683 095 BIW® 25123 - - 153 - 130954 282,48

Reportable segmentprofit/  WHEHHH AR/

(loss) before taxation (B8 2611 2039 M8 165485 | (9470) - (928) - e 1854
Interest income from bank deposits 37/t Bk 917 1525 466 886 2 8 2 - 1,405 2419
Interest expense HgHx 2,480 409 1611 1360 2,100 2,045 - - 160%
Depredation and amortisation ~ ERTEREH

for the year 104 1504 1560 30215 497 124 2 - 18 3193
Reportable segment assets RESPEE 205704 155515 494305 768958 344014 245000 156324 - 120347 1169674

Additions to non-current segment R E RIS

assets during the year HPEE 3818 337 494 2158 1403 g1 152,555 - 8000 27
Reportable segment liabilites ~ T E4HEE 85046 216278 158369 230330 150728 205743 97,604 -1 652351
As a result of the disposal of Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging RMRE2015F HELHIER %
& Printing Science Technology during 2015 (see note ENfpIRHE AR AR (RHFE28) » &
28), the Group has changed its internal organisation EEE T WERLERE K ] Bk &
and the composition of its reportable segments. BAEKE S - At - REEEFST
Accordingly, the Group has restated the operating BZE2014F12 A31 HIEFERK
segment information for the year ended 31 December EDEER °

2014.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDEBHELE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DE2HK(4])
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or (i) THRKEIBHER BEEREEBN
loss, assets and liabilities HER

2014
20144
(Restated)

(&=751)
$'000
FBT

Profit gl

] ER R AR A A A A

Reportable segment profit

before taxation 41,631 186,524
Net income from disposal of — HEHIE A FFUA

a subsidiary 362,125 -
Net realised and unrealised EEBFNCFRMAEIRF s

gains on equity securities 896 -
Net gains from sale of HEHEESRMEEN TR

available-for-sale financial

assets - 11,031
Dividend income from ERHFHRBUA

equity securities 516 -
Unallocated head office and RO B4 D ERI X

corporate expenses (24,004) (6,954)
Consolidated profit before FabtAnE M

taxation 381,164 190,601
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI AR BB B 1,290,347 1,169,674
Equity securities BEZFH 83,410 =
Unallocated head office and KO BABMEEEE

corporate assets 40,642 25,232
Consolidated total assets REBERE 1,414,399 1,194,906
Liabilities 8f&
Reportable segment liabilities  AJ RO EpA(E 491,747 652,351
Unallocated head office and KO BEHBMEEEE

corporate liabilities 5,302 5,827
Consolidated total liabilities 474 B {E48%8 497,049 658,178
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iii) Geographic information

No geographic information is shown as the revenue
and profit from operations of the Group are derived
from its activities in the PRC.

4 OTHER INCOME 4

115

LONEES )

(b) ZEH2HH (&)
(i) HIEH

A AN SR B RO 48 & S U A B 7
KEERTENEY - SRR
HIZEFRY

HABA

Interest income R B U S

Government grants T HEBh

Dividend income from equity securities BEEHHFIREWA

Dividend income from a liquidated EEEMBARRREKA
subsidiary

Sales of scrap materials HEER

Net foreign exchange loss M 5 B RS RE

Gains on sale of available-for-sale HEAHBESREERS
financial assets

Net realised and unrealised gains BEBHFNCSFIRA
on equity securities IR T W

Gain/(loss) on revaluation of ARESEHE
convertible bond (note 20) (B18) (FzE20)

Rental income AW A

Others HAth

6,103 2,419
- 575
516 1,549
2,016 -
9,962 12,505
(7.378) (908)
- 9,482
896 -
488 274)
248 259
334 343

13,185 25,950




116

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements
R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(9]

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BB
AN AFNEEEED

(a) Finance costs: (a)
Interest on bank borrowings wholly

Bt A e
BB/ (B A) AT B BATR R -

repayable within five years RITEFRFE 3,121 15,024
Interest on convertible bond (note 20) AIRRARE A AT B (FfRE 20) 3,189 776
Other interest expense EF e 16,866 7,509
Less: Interest expense capitalised into B BRNMERERBYE

properties under development* BF S * (7,754) (4,943)
15,422 18,366
o The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.600% * BEKABE B F5.600%F8.515%
- 8.515% per annum. KILL R E AL ©
(b) Staff costs: (b) EITHEXK
Contributions to defined contributions FEHBGRIRET SRR

retirement plan 3,531 3,768
Equity settled share-based payment AR 4 E AR

expenses PSR 9,685 1,363
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMEF 54,330 56,528

67,546 61,659
(c) Otheritems: (0 EHfEAE :
Amortisation of intangible assets BiHEmEE 35 138

(note 13) (MHEE13)

Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 2 1,860 2,557
Cost of inventories * (note 15(c)) FER A (3T 15(0) 338,287 430,286
Depreciation of property, M - BEREERTE

plant and equipment (note 11) (BfF&E11) 19,029 30,800
Amortisation of leasehold land (note 11)  #E$5FHE 30 (FIFE11) 531 995
Impairment losses AIEEE
— Trade and other receivables - B REUFIER

H fth FEM IR 3,727 1,102

Net foreign exchange loss bE 3 518 5 28 7,378 908

Operating lease charges wEHERE 8,351 8,128
Net loss on sale of property, HEME -

plant and equipment BB M i e 1R 5 R 79 44

i Cost of inventories includes $35,541,000 (2014: $49,005,000)
relating to staff costs, operating lease charges, depreciation
and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

# FEXRABSEETHRA KEHEER

E & H B S B B A 435,541,000t (2014
£ :49,005,0007T) * A L& EIRET A £ XEk
WSO &R AR B R ENEERAS
pq °
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6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong
Profits Tax

ENEAREIE - BARFIEH

6

mEEERANMES

(a)

REBBERANBIEARK

Provision for the year FREE = 4,851
Current tax - PRC income tax BEABLIR - REI AT 5
Provision for the year FAEE 57,686 35,354
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal of i 2= RO EE A B O]
temporary differences (3,052) (708)
54,634 39,497

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, taking into account a reduction granted by
the Hong Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2014-15 subject to
a maximum reduction of $20,000 for each business
(2014: a maximum reduction of $10,000 was granted
for the year of assessment 2013-14 and was taken
into account in calculating the provision for 2014).
The payments of dividends by the Group companies
incorporated in Hong Kong are not subject to
withholding tax.

(ii)

RIEFRSHENABEZHSNR
AIRIRB - REEBANZERDE
RGN ERMFAER o

H 201449 X&2015412 A318
LHFE - BEANEHRNBEBEER
AT ERTRUE IR 16.5% & » I
EETEBBFEBFM2014E15
FHEENEABZATEL75%
MBER R BEEELNRR L
IR /20,000 7C (2013 E 14:F i 4F
SRR % _EBR A 10,000 7T @ E5TE
014 FRBREDEEBEN) - A%
E R BB MR BT A
18 B BZEE AN TEIFS -
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law"”) which
became effective on 1 January 2008 and the PRC's
statutory Corporate Income Tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to
advanced technology enterprises established in the
PRC, Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science
Technology Co., Ltd. is subject to PRC corporate income
tax at a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year ended
31 December 2014.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation
rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident
corporate investors from PRC-resident enterprises are
subject to withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since
1 January 2008. Under the tax arrangement between
the Mainland of China and Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the
“beneficial owner” and holds a 25% equity interest
or more of a PRC enterprise is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%. The withholding tax rate
applicable to the Group is 5%.

6

mEEBRANMES (&)

(a) HEBEARAMNBIRNRE @ (F)

(iii)

(iv)

R2007F3H168 F+EEZE
ARRRASERARZBSEBA
FRMCERERE(FRE]D - K
R2008F1 A1 BAERK  FEDETE
EMEHER25% °

AR AR 38 FA P TE R BB S A S s L
EREEER  THIERBEE
IR AR AR ARE E 20144
12A3BLEFREREBRHRE15%
BMR BB -

BBEFFREREERMA - BRIE
20084 1 A 1 B #2 BN A s FI| JE TR
TR LHEE R - BRIGEPEE
REEEREERBPEERLEN
BB AR 10% BMTEINF - RIE
P B i B A B RN TT R 2 R Y
ML EERABRER - & AHRBED
XN [ EEAAl THEF25% 3%
LA FRE IR E BB E AT KERA
ZRETREMHES% c BARAK
EEMTEINHEARS%
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 6 #“AaEBmXRANFIEH (E)
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HEMZHEEERARETENS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FhRF AR ¢

Profit before taxation A 381,164 190,601
Notional tax on profit before AR R A= FT A

taxation, calculated at the AT E R

rates applicable to profits AR B HEE TR

in the jurisdictions

concerned 47,813 33,747
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ ] F17%1 7 Sz & i 18 57 22 4,486 2,657
PRC withholding tax BURR 2 TR NF 2,335 3,093

Actual tax expense ERHIERS 54,634 39,497
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EEME

RIEFECR BEH ) 383N IE M A R (HHE
EEFZER) BRONE 2 25RO EEIE

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
are as follows:

T

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits benefits Discretionary payments
Name of directors fees in kind schemes bonuses Sub-Total (note)
E =11 BINER URGAE
ESHe HOEWER IR RiEEA hat B (KR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
TARL TARL TARL TAL THT THT
Executive directors HTEE
Guo Yumin PER 550 2 18 1,200 1,770 88 1,858
Xia Yu BE - 502 - 400 902 88 990
Zeng Xiangyang el - 901 16 900 1,817 360 2177
Guo Cheng (Appointedon ~ BH(R=ZT—1E
20 May 2015) RAZTHEZ) - 349 - 500 849 261 1,110
Bau Siu Fung g - 1,200 18 700 1,918 360 2,278
He Lijun (Resigned on g (R=E-n%
15 January 2015) —A+RAEA) - - - - - - -
Huang Bo (Resigned on BR(N-Z-1F
24 September 2015) NAZTEAEHE) - 292 - 300 592 270 862
Independent non- BU#HTEE
executive directors
Lo Wa Kei EZE 200 - - - 200 109 309
Fong Wo Ll 200 - - - 200 109 309
Fan Qing bel 200 - - - 200 109 309
Total ait 1,150 3,246 52 4,000 8,448 1,754 10,202
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7  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7 EEME (&)
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other to retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits benefits  Discretionary EIENS
Name of directors 4 in kind schemes bonuses Sub-Total
IR
BEea it

$'000 $'000 $'000

TARL TARL j
Executive directors HTEE
Guo Yumin PER - 553 17 128 698 68 766
Xia Yu BE - 503 - 128 631 68 699
Zeng Xiangyang el - 305 16 - 321 68 389
He Lijun v - 379 89 = 468 = 468
Huang Bo B - 400 - - 400 68 468
Bau Siu Fung g - 1,000 17 = 1,017 68 1,085
Independent non- BUFHTEE

executive directors

Lo Wa Kei BEE 200 - - - 200 - 200
Fong Wo Ll 200 - = = 200 = 200
Fan Qing BB 200 - - - 200 = 200
Total ait 600 3,140 139 256 4,135 340 4,475
Note: FitsE

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 22.

ZENFERERNRABEEA SR TESOMGERE
IRHEB(E - ZF R BETIREMEE 2(a)ii) Pr#
AEERBUARODRERNFTNZ HHSEBORG
B MREZBR  FHEEEEABREBEFER
i es T RN R B AT HOR MM RET S BIEH A

;o

ZEEMENOFS (BERHBRENEEK
HEEE ) TR 22 #5E -
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8  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 meFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all (2014: hETRHMATHEZE(2014F - 48)H A
four) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The B2E HMERMFE7HE - 8 T~ ATHEB
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals mEEmn

are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments e R E R - 379
Contributions to retirement RIRFEFIRT BN

benefits schemes - 113
Share-based payments RRAD TR = =

- 492

Number of other individuals HE AT AZ - 1
The emoluments of the above individuals are within the following AEALTEEMN FUATEHE
band:

2015 2014
20154 20144

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE N

Nil to $1,000,000 Z % 1,000,0007C = 1
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9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9 HxmEls
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (a) H2EWEESARI D HIEE
other comprehensive income B E

2015 2014
20155 20145
Tax Tax
Before-tax  (expense)/  Net-of-tax  Before-tax  (expense))  Net-of-tax

amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BiA I

Bad® () Fz  HeeE  HaeE (X ikt ke

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

TEx TER TER AL TET AT

Exchange differences IMEREZ
on translation of:
— financial statements of subsidiaries - WBAF
B (38,684) - (38,684) 1,145 - 1,145
Available-for-sale financial assets: e REE
— net movement in fair value reserve - AT EREN
R - - - (3,505) - (3,505)
Other comprehensive income Hiv2Ehs (38,684) - (38,684) (2,360) = (2,360)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) E2EKZARIED r BFFE
including reclassification adjustments o ERE

Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHESREE :
Changes in fair value recognised NERRH N TEE

during the year - 5,977
Reclassification adjustments B EFAE

for amounts transferred BABZNEE

to profit or loss:

— gain on disposal (note 4) - e (FiE4) = (9,482)
Net movement in the fair value EEM =S

reserve during the year ROFERRTF

recognised in other EfFEREH

comprehensive income - (3,505)
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) for the year ended
31 December 2014 has been retrospectively adjusted for the Share
Subdivision. The details of the Share Subdivision is set out in note
24(c).

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREF

HZE2014F 12 A31 B I FENESRERKE
SEA A BT BRI BB BRRIRIEL 1B
FE - BEETFRFFIBESIAKE 240+ -

(a) BREXZER
SREARTRRBAD DA A
R DA PO EL B8 7 ) BB BT 4
Bt -

Profit attributable to equity RARE=FFE ARG R

shareholders of the Company 326,530 92,507
Weighted average number of BT RRAINETHE

ordinary Shares in issue (Note) (BffsE) 1,989,341 1,665,565
Basic EPS (Note) GRREARZF (M) 0.16 0.06

Note: Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and
basic EPS were stated after taking into account the effect of
the Share Subdivision (mentioned in Note 24(c)). Comparative
figures have also been restated on the assumption that the
Share Subdivision had been effective in prior year.

MiGE : B 81T E B Mg T BN ERER
& T A 4 A% A2 2 (4N B & 24(c) Pt )
&I o LLBBMFERBIFRAENESF
EEHAERNBREFZ
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 10 BRER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRESER

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on ERBERFNFERERAR R LR
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of % A& B 4 Y8 A1 329,231,000 78 7T (2014
the Company of HK$329,231,000 (2014: HK$93,557,000) % 193,557,000 70 ) B AR E IR BB R
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares DA B R AFEERERERT S (T
of 2,187,293,000 shares (2014: 1,756,932,000) after 22) BATRR « AR EER AR & (MY
adjusting for the effects of deemed issue of shares under the F120) IR 2 B EH AR B AL B
Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (note 22), the effect ho#E 159 822,187,293,000 f% (2014 4F -
of deemed conversion of convertible bond (note 20) and the 1,756,932,000 f%) 5T &

effect of Share Subdivision.

(i)  Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders () ALFEBEREZBREGER B
of the Company (diluted) #)

Profit attributable to ordinary 7N/ &) & @iERS

equity shareholders of P ER A 4 A

the Company 326,530 92,507
After tax effect of effective BERF R HATRRES

interest on the liability HB B EEN

component of convertible e 2 (MsE20)

bond (note 20) 3,189 776
After tax effect of change in ~ AJ R EHFMLTELLH

fair value of derivative AT ESBEED

component of convertible T o2 (MisE 20)

bond (note 20) (488) 274

Profit attributable to ordinary 7N/ &) & @ERS
equity shareholders of IR AR T ()
the Company (diluted) 329,231 93,557
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)

Weighted average number of 38 A% H) AN 359 51

10 SKREF (&)
(b) ER#EFERF (K)

(i)

ERERNMEFIIE (85F)

ordinary shares (Note) (fF3E) 1,989,341 1,665,565
Effect of deemed issue of BAERIR AR B BB AR

shares under the Company’s T EIZTRH AL

share option scheme (M7E22) (Ft&E)

(note 22) (Note) 29,074 6,928
Effect of deemed conversion of 18 (i Al i

convertible bond (note 20) RIEHRE

(Note) (PI=E20) (BIEE) 168,878 84,439
Weighted average number of £ 3fA% H) AN 39 £

ordinary shares (diluted) (#5%) (i E)

(Note) 2,187,293 1,756,932

Note: Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue,
adjustments for share options and convertible bond,
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
calculation of diluted EPS and diluted EPS were stated
after taking into account the effect of the Share
Subdivision. Comparative figures have been restated
on the assumption that the Share Subdivision had been
effective in prior year.

BRE - DERITERRAME TS
BN AR E SR - 5
HEHSERBNRERANEE
Bt FaRE - UREEES
IR BRI RIFAAE BRI © t
BUFRIZBFBRERNAEEFE
ERREKES
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT, AND LEASEHOLD 11 #¥1¥% - EE  RIEREE L i
LAND

NEE

leasehold

[and held

for own

0ile Use Under

Plantand  equipment Motor  Construction operating

Buildings ~ machinery  and others vehicles  in progress Sub-total lease

HEk AR
tiRE LS
ERTR g 38
$000 ! $000
TAT BT TAL

Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R4ETR1H 157,301 262,157 14,403 8893 5 442,759 49,584 492,343
Exchange adjustments i3 (523) (887) (44) 21 = (1475) (170) (1,645)
Acquisition of a subsiciary WEHEAR - - 177 - - 177 - 177
Addtions hE 3490 1,065 831 853 16,499 2738 = 278
Redlassification to assets held for sale BN HBEHEREEE (87,653) (75,903) (7,804) (2,240) (3295 (176,895) (22883)  (199,778)
Disposals & - (379) (206) = - (581) = (581)
At 31 December 2014 R014E12A31H 72615 186,057 73571 7485 13,209 286,723 26,531 313254
Accumulated depreciation ZiERES

and amortisation:
At 1 January 2014 R14E151R (29,206) (79,434) (10,156) (5,894) - (124690 @74 (129444)
Exchange adjustments ERRE 66 181 5 16 - 288 13 301
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENB AR - - ) - - ()] - (i)
Charge for the year ERAk (7,589) (19,860) 217 (1,180) - (30,800) (995) (31,799)
Reclassification to assets held for sale  BHAEZH{EEEEE 15,209 33,791 5736 1882 = 5,618 2353 58971
Written back on disposals RHERED - M 113 - - 445 = 445
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 5318 (21,520) (64,990) (6,464) (5,176) = (98,150) (3383 (10153
Net book value: RERE

At 31 December 2014 R2014512A31H 51,09 121,067 893 2,309 13,209 188,573 23,148 21,71
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT, AND LEASEHOLD 11 ¥1¥ - BE  REREE L (E)
LAND (CONTINUED)

Interests in
|easehold
land held
forown
Solar Office use under
powers Plantand equipment Motor Construction operating
plants Buildings ~ machinery  and others vehicles Yacht ~in progress Sub-total lease
R
HEREER
Vi HOERE il
& By it it fEIR it il 53
§/000 §000 ) §1000 §'000 ) §'000
TEn TER TEn TEn T TEn TEn
Cost; BA:
At 1 January 2015 R015F1A18 - 12615 186,057 1351 7485 - 13,209 286,723 26,531 313,254
Bichange adjustments Ejifg - (651) (10.962) (e11) (e17) - (276) (16,717) (1549) (18,266)
Additions e 152,506 126 3519 1,760 1388 35,573 619 195,491 - 195,491
Transfer from construction BERIREY
in progress - 10,995 228 - - - (13.21) - - -
Disposals i3 - - (161) (984) - - - (1,145) - (1,145)
At 31 December 2015 R15E12A318 152,506 79,085 180,735 1122 8456 35573 15 464352 24982 489,334
Accumulated depreciation SiEREE:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2015 R015%E1A18 - (21,520) (64,990) (6.464) (5,176) - - (98,150) (3383) (101,533)
Bxchange adjustments HE LS - 1407 4,097 346 299 - - 6,149 19 6,368
Charge for the year Efi = (4,283) (10,834) (517) (1,024) (231) < (19,029) (531) (19,560)
Witten back on disposals MHEREE - - 160 904 - - - 1,064 - 1,064
At 31 December 2015 R201512A318 - (24,39) (71,567) (5731) (5,901) 23n) - (109,966) (3,695) (113,661)
Net book value: BERE:

At 31 December 2015 B2015%512 4318 152,506 54,689 109,168 1991 255 33202 5 354,386 21,281 315,613
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT, AND LEASEHOLD
LAND (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

(a)

1 9% BE  REXREELH ()

VIRIREFEDHMW D -

Medium-term leases in the PRC R FEEE 75,976 74,243
Representing: B :
Buildings BT 54,689 51,095
Interests in leasehold land held REBLEHERFEEAN
for own use under HE kg
operating lease 21,287 23,148
75,976 74,243

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
lease represent land located in the PRC. As at 31 December
2015, the remaining period of the land use rights ranged
from 43 to 46 years.

Buildings, plant and machinery and interests
in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease pledged for banking facilities

As at 31 December 2015, motor vehicles, buildings, plant and
machinery and interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating lease with net book value of $163,010,000
(2014: $179,502,000) are pledged as security against bank
loans of certain subsidiaries (see note 19).

(b)

BRECEHSEHEERNHEET hAER
AR RBEA T - R20154F 12 A 31
B T AN TERN T 43246
FRE o

RBTHREEFET BERHE
ERBECEHERFFANESR
TR R

MR2015F12A318 & % E A
163,010,000 7T (2014 4 : 179,502,000
TC)BAE - BT KB MRS KRR
EHEREA ANEE T A EED HEIT
LMEARE THEBARMIRITERAERS
(RHIEE19) °
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 AHELRNRE
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which THEHEFEXLEASEES  BEEXERE
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The BKTB A RS - RBAEEAN  FIREZR
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. DEER AT A o

Proportion of ownership interest

ikt 2 3shid]
Date and Place of
place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment business up capital interest  the Company  a subsidiary activities
RLAH gXR BRAR AREW

ARER Rt £330k HREA ENRE mARARE HNEARER

Ling Xian Fei Yu Import and FERFEEOCRI) 10 September 2007/ The PRC HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("LXFY") BB ([LXFY)) The PRC B 3,180,000 dgarette films
(Note 1) and (Note 2) ()R 007594108/ AT e

(M) '#

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science TEERERRARAR 6 March 2002/ The PRC Usb 100% - 100% Printing of
Technology Co, Ltd. (*)55C") ([155¢]) The PRC ke 2,176,400 darette films
(Note 1) and (Note 3) (W) R 20253868/ = BIEEEDR)

(M3) i

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & THIERBRERRE 20 December 2008/ The PRC 1) 51% - 51% Printing of
Printing Science Technology BRAR([15T) The PRC HE 5,500,000 Cigarette
Co,, Ltd. ("15ST") (W) (WaE3) R 2008%12R208/ X packages
{Note 1), (Note 3) and (Note 4) (MtzE4) ﬁF BIEERER

Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology ~ EERFBERMEAER 27 June 2007/ The PRC 1) 100% = 100%  Manufacturing
Co, Ltd. ("QD Ener”) N (1QD Ener)) The PRC f 12,000,000 (Note 5) of cigarette
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (W)R(ME2) 200168278/ 3 (Hi3ts) and BOPP films

e ARRBOPPER

sl
liangsu Kingtai Packaging Technology [ T&&ZAENABR 11 January 2013/ The PRC RMB 70% = 70%  Manufacturing
Co. Ltd. ("ISKT") Aa(KT) The PRC k| 7,000,000 and trading of
(Note 1), (Note 3) and (Note 5) (1) (WE3)R  2013F1A11B/ ARE aluminum ol

(o) o EERNES
R
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of company

New Advantage Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. ("NARED")
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Hong Kong Sheen Tai Investment
Limited. ("HKSTIL")

Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy Investment
Limited. (“STNEIL(HK)")

Sheen Tai Energy Investment Limited
("STEIL")

Sheen Tai International Investment
Limited ("STIL")

Century Leader Asia Limited (“CLAL")

Date and

place of

incorporation/

establishment

HEL/

RIAH

Rit%

RGBS EHERS 24 July 2013/
BRAE ([NARED)) The PRC
GRS WI3FTAUB/
(W2) hE
BAIERRARRAA 10 May 2013/
(THksTIL]) Hong Kong
013%58108/

JBR (&%) 3eeR 27 November 2013/
RERRAR Hong Kong
(TSTNEIL(HK)) W013%118278/
JERee R 18 November 2013/
BRAR British Virgin lslands
([STEILY) ("BI")
WB3ENA18E/

ABRLHE

([ZBRaEE))

JEREIRRE 2 May 2013/
ERAT Britsh Virgin Islands
(fsmL)) ("BvI")
01355828/

AERLES

([£BRES))

FEDNERAT 2 April 2007/
(TCLAL)) Hong Kong
00154828/

Place of
operation
and
business

R

The PRC
T

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
3

12 REEARHRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

it L350

Issued Group's
and paid effective Held by Held by
YENE] interest  the Company  a subsidiary
BEfR A5EN
HRER ERRE ArRERE ANRARKE

UsD 100% - 100%
20,000,000

0

UsD 100% - 100%
25,000,000

N

HKD 100% - 100%

100

iy

UsD 100% - 100%

100

N

usD 100% 100% =

100

eI

HKD 100% - 100%

10,000

BT

Principal
activities

Real estate
development

FHELR

Investment
holding
RERR

Investment
holding
RERR

Investment
holding
AR

Investment
holding
RARR

Investment
holding
RERR

131
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

12 REEARRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

it 4350
Date and Place of
place of operation Issued Group's

incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment business YENE] interest ~ the Company  a subsidiary ativities

i/

RLAH EXR BEfR A5EN
Rt £ 8 HRER EREE AARERE ANRARKE

Sheen China Group Holdings JBELEZRERAT 27 November 2008/ HongKong 1) 100% 100% = Investment
Inc. ("SCGHI") ([SCGH) British Virgin Islands &% 10 holding
("Bvr") e RERR

008F11A278/

RERNHS

([£BR%ES))
Sheen China Group Holdings BESEARERAT 5 September 2008/ HongKong HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
Limited (*SCGHL") ([SCGHL)) Hong Kong &k 1 dgarette films
008597458/ AT BIEERES
Sheen China (Hong Kong) JEE (B8 BRAT 20 August 1997/ Hong Kong HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
Limited ("HKSC") (THKsC)) Hong Kong & 12,600,000 dgarette films
1997984208/ AT BIEERES
Shenzhen Shuntai New Energy RINERFREIRRI 31 March 2015/ The PRC RVB 100% - 100% Trading of
Science Technology Co, Ltd. BRAAMEDR The PRC & 160,000,000 dgarette films
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (M) W583A318/ N BEERES

i
Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy RHIER= R RES 21 Apil 2015/ The PRC RVB 100% - 100%  Generation of
Power Generation Company Limited AR A (1) The PRC # 39,000,000 photovoltaic
(Note 1) W15E4R218/ AR% power
# TREE
Hong Kong Tawo Holding Limited ~~ BAZFIZRARAT 31July 2015/ Hong Kong HKD 100% - 100% Investment
Hong Kong & 100 holding
W557A318/ AT REBR
Hami Shuntai New Energy Co, Ltd.  BEIBRF#ERRAA 29 April 2015/ The PRC RVB 100% - 100% R&D of
(Note 1) (Rst1) The PRC i 2,000,000 photovoltaic
015547298/ ARE products
hE ERER

I
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 RHEARNIRE (&)

Note 1: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The MIEE1 - EXAMEZLIBEMRSE  ZZEENE
official names of these entities are in Chinese. F BB AL -

Note 2: These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC. MizE2 - ZEEBRTBERINERE -

Note 3: These entities are equity joint ventures in PRC. MizE3 : ZEERATREERE -

Note 4: Pursuant to the Equity Transfer agreement dated 15 January 2015, fizE4 $ETFEA2015¢1 REY=HA: ol
SCGHL agreed to sell its interest in JSST. More details were disclosed CIREEEERBR AR ﬁzﬂj%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
in note 28. /I@?RME/J\ BERIRHE AR A R KR o 5F

BRI TE 28

Note 5: JSKT was liquidated on 13 August 2015. MIFES : ISKTER 201548 A 13 BB ©

The following table lists out the information relating to JSST and TFREFFIEISST K ISKT BRARER - ZAFIRZ

JSKT, the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non- AREBEREAFERERDMNBAR - TK

controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial information 2B EER I EAEERN AR ERET

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company IR EH AT R ENEE -

elimination.

JSST JSKT

2015 2014 2015 2014

2015 20144 2015 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FAT FExT FAET

NCI percentage IEERERT B D - 49% - 30%
Current assets MENEE = 189,431 = 28,181
Non-current assets ERBEE - 141,243 = 9
Current liabilities ViEJN=N = (146,104) - (12,506)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE = (585) = =
Net assets FEE - 183,985 - 15,684
Carrying amount of NCI IR R R (B = 90,152 - 4,705
Revenue WA — 308,111 — 28,184
Profit for the year FRE N - 117,916 = 2,730
Total comprehensive income 2HEWNELREE = 117,692 = 2,680

Profit allocated to NCI AT IEIEAR R A

bl - 57,778 - 819

Dividend paid to NCI B IEERER AR S = 53,077 = 687
Cash flows from operating activities &2 EEELNIRE T - 158,180 - 11,620
Cash flows from investing activities WEEBELENRENR - (12,410) = 400

Cash flows from financing activities BEEBELEMNR SR = (106,290) = =
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At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BVEE

Software
B
$'000
FH&T
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2014 7201441818 795
Addition NE 35
Exchange adjustments b AR (3)
Reclassification to asset held for sale ENOBEEREREERE (580)
At 31 December 2014 MR2014%F12 A31H 247
Accumulated amortisation: ZoTEes
At 1 January 2014 7201441818 (250)
Exchange adjustments Ik _
Charge for the year FRMBR (138)
Reclassification to asset held for sale BN EERARERE 266
At 31 December 2014 M2014%F 12 A31H (122)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A31H 125
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2015 7201541818 247
Addition NE 1,024
Exchange adjustments M 5 S B (40)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12 A31H 1,231
Accumulated amortisation: Z5HEe
At 1 January 2015 7201541818 (122)
Exchange adjustments M N A 8
Charge for the year F AR (35)
At 31 December 2015 M2015F 12 A31H (149)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2015 M2015%F 12 A31H 1,082

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost of sales” in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FREHEACDHARSBRRN [HEMAK]
o
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

135

14 UAFEFEBESBTAEHE
mHERMEE

Equity securities held for trading FEEERARZFH
Listed equity securities at fair value EHEB LEMUARTFETED
in Hong Kong A E S 83,410 -
15 INVENTORIES 15 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statements of () ZKEMBEMRRBERANTFER
financial position comprise: &

Packaging materials manufacturing ‘B2 ¥IR Y EH
and trading
Raw materials R 47,015 57,586
Work in progress R m 9,827 6,547
Finished goods UK R 26,582 28,808
83,424 92,941
Property development M ER
Land held for development for sale  #3{E3SE A SHE Y L3 196,176 196,176
Property under development BREFENME
for sale 137,077 34,438
333,253 230,614

(b) The analysis of carrying value of land held
for property development for sale is as
follows:

(b) HEMEBRERIUMEEN LB
SREEEIAOT

Outside Hong Kong BEBEIZEIN

— 50 years or more (long leases)

- 50 FebA L (RBAHEE)

333,253 230,614
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15 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

(c) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

15 75 (&)

(0 BRAXZHIFTAEHEZNE
BB

Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &F&EHIREE 338,547 430,440
Reversal of write-down of inventories #[E117 SR (260) (154)
338,287 430,286

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years
arose due to sales of impaired non-cigarette packaging films.

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

HAREDRENIFEERBRER - FiE[E
VAT 5 2 8977 S OB ©

16 EZBUIER EARYRIR

Trade debtors and bills receivable B 5B GRIE K RN E R 309,104 161,992
Less: Allowance from doubtful debts B REREES (K3 16(b))
(note 16(b)) (4,648) (1,830)
304,456 160,162
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRAEK
receivables HAtb U GRIA
— third parties -F=F 24,900 26,221
329,356 186,383

All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

P EL A 5 55 18 WO oR I H e Wk TR 15 TR A
R—FAW @ kiR R o
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis:

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

16

B 5 BWRIA R E BV IR (&)
(a) FRERZHT

REREER - B 5 R IE &N ZE
(Tyat AE 5 REMGRIE R E A FERGEIAA)
ERBEZ ARG RIEREROERRD
MranT :

2015 2014
2015 20144
Trade Bills Trade Bills
debtors receivable debtors receivable
B3 g5
WA i EE FEWGRIA e ZE &
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
FE T FERT FAT FHT
Less than 30 days LR 30H 41,332 90,410 46,747 19,645
31 -90 days 31290H 62,875 15,154 61,884 9,530
91 - 180 days 912180 H 28,721 62,379 11,859 76
181 — 365 days 1812365 H 2,229 193 6,247 -
Over 365 days #8365 H 1,008 155 4,174 -
136,165 168,291 130,911 29,251

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180
days from the invoice date. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 25(a).

ESERFEMERZEEZHEH SR
302180 B AEIH - BERAAKEEFEEIK
KA — SHBER M RE 25()
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16 EFREKWFEREMEKRRE(EF)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is directly written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable (see note 2(j)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(b) BEZEWIHERERRERE

B 5N IA R RN R B R R ERE & R
RZERIRR R - RIFARER R KEH
AREMEIE - BRISRBEERNEEE
BORH B 5 M8 WA K R R iR (2B
w 2()) °

[ RAEE (BIEHS T RERATE N
5)BBEBIT :

At 1 January m1A1H 1,830 728
Impairment loss recognised ERREEE 2,818 1,102
At 31 December M12A31H 4,648 1,830

As of 31 December 2015, an impairment loss of
HK$4,648,000 (2014: HK$1,830,000) was recognised and
provided for as a result from the assessment of the Group’s
trade receivables due from third parties of HK$4,648,000
(2014: HK$1,830,000) that individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables mainly
relate to customers who are in financial difficulties and the
likelihood of recoverability is expected to be in doubt. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables due from third parties that are past due
but not impaired relate to creditworthy customers who have
maintained a close working relationship with the Group and
have consistent payment records.

MR2015F12 8318 A& B F % fE
W E =7 E 5 FE 4,648,000 7T
(20144 : 1,830,000/8 7T ) E @ Bl & &
BRE - MIERIETIE T 4,648,000 7T
(20144 : 1,830,00078 7T ) KR EEIE -
EREEARENEZENRBEEERT
P R E - KA IE Rl e TF R
Bl - AEBRERZSEHBIFTEEMIE
e

EAMERRENEEE=TTNE SRR
RS REASE-HRFETNAEH
& UHEAHENREHENEERTNE
Eo
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(o)

(d)

Trade and bills receivable that are not
impaired:

The aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

139

16 EZBRUGIER E RN (8)
(0 REENEERRRERRE :

B 5 IR & B WERR R R ik 0 AT (S
A fERI S HEHI TR RRE) AT

Current BIHA 251,601 113,243
Less than 1 month past due BE DR 1 8 A 17,844 22,720
1 to 3 months past due wHEI1 =38 A 29,066 11,635
More than 3 months past due w AR 3 (8 A 5,945 12,564
Amount past due B 52,855 46,919

304,456 160,162

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
the trade balance with a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balance are still considered fully recoverable.

Impairment of other receivables

At 31 December 2015, a provision of HK$909,000 (2014 Nil)
was provided for other receivables.

AR IBLH N AR O FE UK R R B AT B G R 4
REFNZHEFBRH -

B8 BB RIRE R B U IR B3 T HLANER
B RIFR S LENBURPNE S
HARM o RIFBELSR - EEEARZT
EARBAFLRERE  REEERLE
EAZHASHNRR AR 28 E -

HtBWRRE

MR2015F12 831 H » SR E M EW R
=142 909,000 7T (2014 4F ) Ry#fs o

(d)
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 BEeRBEELEEEH
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BERBEELESEEABE

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEERS 194,410 117,049

Cash and cash equivalents in the NG p W
consolidated statement MR&FBEIER
of financial position 194,410 117,049

Overdrafts from banks and other ERIT M E A& B R
financial institution (note 19) #EX (BIFE19) (950) (9,731)

Reclassified as assets held for sale B DB A IEFEEE = 57,947

Cash and cash equivalents in the RirEHERERNEE R

consolidated cash flow statement ReEEIEE 193,460 165,265
As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, cash at bank and on M2014F % 2015F 12 A31 8 » FHRN
hand placed with banks in the PRC amounted to $90,248,000 FREIAYERTT X FEEIR & 9 51 A90,248,000
and $152,008,000 respectively. Remittance of funds out of JC &% 152,008,000 7T ° A EIME HE S A
the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the A BB b DA SN I TR PR

PRC government.
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 17 BEeRkBEELEEEA (8)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) FANGERELEMBRSHER

cash generated from operations:

Operating activities ReEE
Profit before taxation R 381,164 190,601
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEE 5(c) 35 138
Depreciation and amortisation BB ETE R
of fixed assets 5(c) 19,560 31,795
Finance costs R in®N 5(a) 15,422 18,366
Dividend income from equity BEBHFHREWA
securities (516) (1,549)
Interest income FLEHA (6,103) (2,419)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B A R U (362,125) =
Gains on sale of available-for-sale HERTEHE
financial assets TREEEM S - (9,482)
Dividend income from a liquidated B /8EHE A R EUA
subsidiary (2,016) -
Fair value change of convertible AR ESH AT EE
bonds (488) =
Gains on equity securities BEEFEHFNRE (896) =
Net loss on sale of property, & B pth 2 -
plant and equipment B KRR E I8 F 5 5(c) 79 44
Equity settled share-based UARE s A E DARR 19
payment expenses BERER 5(b) 9,685 1,363
Net foreign exchange loss b 3 5 185 28 13,719 2,892

Operating profit before changes & E& & % EhATHEE HF

in working capital 67,520 231,749
Increase in inventories FeEEm (118,950) (27,326)
Decrease in trade and other B S REWGIE K

receivables EAh e YR IR 29,698 10,861
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B RENFIER

other payables H A REFRIER A0, (R D) 92,304 (59,407)

Cash generated from operations KZFERE 70,572 155,877
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 ESENFIERHEME[SFIE

Trade and bills payable B 5 e 5RIE R E 2R 130,790 61,530
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIBERETER
— related parties i 71,125 46,011
— others - B 112,148 110,157
Amount due to the FERHE AR AR R
Controlling shareholder and director FEFHIE
— Mr Guo Yumin -BERKAE 1,791 3,757
315,854 221,455
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within FTE B 5 IE N FIE R B b BRI FRIBTE AR — 4
one year or are repayable on demand. RNEE B IRTE KT EE °
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RIRERR - BZRNFIERERNER (TIEtA
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other B 5 RERRIE R E M ERRRIEAN) ERE R H
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: RIBRES DATEAT
2015 2014
2015 £ 20144
Trade Bills Trade Bills
payable payable payable payable
=] 25
PEfTRRIE =& FERIRIA FERT =&
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHET FTHET FHIT FHIT
Due within 1 month or on demand 118 A A EI H gk e Z 5k 107,040 9,582 11,554 42,500
Due after 1 month but 1{EA%E
within 3 months 31E A REIHA 2,543 6,073 6,329 -
Due after 3 months but 3B A%E
within 6 months 6 & A R EIHA 2,192 1,683 397 -
Due more than 6 months 6 & A 1& 2 53 1,677 - 750 =

113,452 17,338 19,030 42,500
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19 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 19 B|ITERREX
At 31 December 2014 and 2015, the bank loans were repayable as MR2014F % 2015F 12 A31H @ IBFITEFER
follows: HmT -

Wit f yeerereneimend B2 " U D . 200272
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F1&E2FR 228 220
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBEBSFA 437 658
O, 2 | R
96,454 212,151

Representing: B :
Unsecured overdrafts from banks RIT R EM S kg R

and other financial institution MBS (MTEE17())

(note 17(a)) 950 9,731
Bank loans IRITER
— Secured - B 72,281 198,998
— Unsecured — R 23,223 3,422

96,454 212,151
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19

20

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2014 and 2015, the banking facilities of the Group
totaling $468,832,000 and $382,579,000 respectively were utilised
to the extent of $212,151,000 and $96,454,000 respectively.
Certain bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as set out
below:

19

RITERKEX ()

MR20144 2201512 A31H » "EB A 5t
5115 468,832,000 7T }2 382,579,000 LAY ERFT
mhE 29 A& A 212,151,000 7T & 96,454,000
TC° BAKEBERNEERRNE TRITERET
T

Restricted cash XBRHE S 3,628 18,950

Property, plant and equipment mE - R RER
and leasehold land HELH 163,010 179,502
166,638 198,452

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in note 25(b). As at 31 December 2014 and 2015 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 30 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$165,000,000 to the Controlling
Shareholder and director, Mr Guo Yumin. The maturity date of
the convertible bond is on the third anniversary of the date of
issuance (i.e. 30 June 2017). The convertible bond bears interest at
3% per annum. No security or guarantee is granted in respect of
the convertible bond. The convertible bond can be converted into
398,069,960 shares at the initial conversion price HK$0.4145 after
the effect of the Share Subdivision (subject to adjustment pursuant
to the terms of the convertible bond).

20

REEMMERITREBGFERBEEAERE
TEEBBLENRE  HBTHSHEEE
KEEELTHFTRE - WASEEERZHE - T
RRARERRERER AEETHERA

BETHZELH FHRASEEERDES
[B B Y3 — P EFIBE AR M 5E 25(b) - A 20145
K2015F 12 318 AEEHMEEREDIR
IR E B a2 o

AR AR fE 25

201466 A30H » KRR RIERBREFRES
20 E R LA 31T A4 58 165,000,000 7% JT Y A
BRRES - JIRRESERETEH=EFE
H(BN2017F 6 A308) Hm - WHFFE3%
FTE o KRR AR (E S5 B K HE
IR o ATRESF AT R IRR AR RIRY S
BB 0.4145 8 7T (AR IB AT R B H B KR T
LA ) #8445 398,069,960 AR AR 17 ©
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20 CONVERTIBLE BOND (CONTINUED) 20 "RERES (F)
The Company may at any time before the maturity date of the ARAR A RERERRESSH A - RES
convertible bond, by serving at least seven days prior written BAABLEBETVOREROEEBN &M

notice on the holder of the convertible bond with the total amount

HAREDMARE - RBKTEE AR

proposed to be redeemed from such holder specified therein, BEHBOMNASEECGERZRFFE)  BRE2H
redeem the convertible bond (in whole or in part) at 100% to AR ES (22 EP D) - EARRARER

the principal amount (together with the accrued interests) of the
part of the convertible bond to be redeemed. Any amount of the
convertible bond which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith
be cancelled.

At 31 December 2015, the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bond is HK$70,000,000.

The convertible bond recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group are analysed as follows:

W ERPHABE S SRS IR S -

R2015F 12 A31H » AIRRESFHREELR
$%8/470,000,000 7T

EAEBGAPBRDRERN A RRESD
T

Host liability Derivative
Component

FEEE

component Total

PTETH

B zi%)

#ct
$'000
TR

$'000
FET

$'000
TR

Balance at 31 December 2014 2014412 A 31 HA & 69,159 1,891 71,050
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) B H (FtsE5@)) 3,189 - 3,189
Change in fair value of derivative PTETAHSH

component (note 4) NEEZE (MizE4) - (488) (488)
Interest paid EATHLE (3,150) - (3,150)
Balance at 31 December 2015 MR 20154F 12 A 31 BW&#H 69,198 1,403 70,601
Less: Derivative component W PTET AR - (1,403) (1,403)
Non-current portion of convertible 201512 A31H

bonds at 31 December 2015 AR B2 FEENER L 69,198 - 69,198
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20 CONVERTIBLE BOND (CONTINUED)

Initial fair value of convertible bond

20

B
$'000
THTT

7201446 A30H

AR E S ()

Host liability
Component

T2AE

Derivative
component
PTETH
=i

$'000
BT

issued on 30 June 2014 FrEs{T AR E S 16 A FE 161,189 3,811 165,000
Accumulated interest expenses up HZE=2014F12A31H

to 31 December 2014 (note 5(a)) 2FHFIEZ I (M3 5@)) 776 = 776
Change in fair value of derivative PTET R H

component (note 4) N EZE) (FIFE4) = 274 274
Early redemption in July 2014 R2014F7 ARFER (92,806) (2,194) (95,000)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R 2014412 A 31 BM&RR 69,159 1,891 71,050
Less: Derivative component B PTAET BES = (1,891) (1,891)
Non-current portion of convertible M 2014F12 A31H

bonds at 31 December 2014 AT AR &R FERNERER 69,159 = 69,159

(i) Interest expense on the convertible bond is calculated using (i)
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 3.83% per annum to the liability component.

AR F B S R IR BB A IR IA

BERENX3.83% stHEABMND

(i) No convertible bond was converted as at 31 December 2015. (i) #H=2015F12A831H WEAJBREE

FIREBRBRL
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21

22

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the relevant
local authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the Scheme at the rate of 10% - 20% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

For those forfeited contributions under the Scheme and MPF
scheme the amounts could not be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the sole shareholder passed
on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share option
scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees with the
opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company.

21

22

B ERKER
SERTRINETE

RIEFEMNABSBNEAREETE PRHWNER
7] 2% B /R AF A Hb 5 4 B 48 A5 ) R E R BUR IK
BAETEI(TFED - Bt REZE2014F K
2015F 12 A1 HILFE - BB AR AR &
EEHEENEEREEFTE10% £20% A

e
e

AEENBEZEE SR AESFENEOIR T
EREBERMEOIRE THREESEABFMAR
BerEl([aESTEl]) - wEestElA—1E
HBYZEABTENRATEHIERTE - B
wiEeHE BEREREESEAREIED
HENEERBUWAS% R AT ARE
I A.30,0007t (20144 6 A §125,0007T ) & L
MR o Mt B8R ERENR S -

REBAAAMERFELARFERTBEEHERNE
BB TAR DR B ETOKFE -

R B RSN ARBE Y BEMEZETEA
BERARBMERNREE °

URAEEUARBR/RERNT S

RIEME—ARERR 20125 6 A 22 BiRBH) @R
BE BAAFEERERE S ([ B
B ) ERE R - BERRARBEEESAK
N AR B A RS o
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 22
(CONTINUED)

On 29 January 2015, the Company announced 14,600,000 share
options (before Share Subdivision) to subscribe for up to a total of
14,600,000 ordinary shares (before Share Subdivision) of HK$0.01
each of the Company, which were granted to certain grantees
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22
June 2012 set above.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

URAGEHEUIRODRERNRZ

(%)

720151 A29H + AAR AL AR ER
20124 6 A 22 HERMK B ERTE] - RIEE D&
BB 14,600,000 17 58 B #E (FFARAT) - bAIZ
Fh%0.01 B ITRE R ZE 14,600,000 i & 3@
A& (HRA%AT) ©

BREASIEERSI B BRENTHBAS
AAKERE (28)  EFMERREHREINE
VA R (R E AR R B TSI ©

BNBRER TRAARMNRBERRR—RE
B - WA 2EEE -

(a) BHEMERRIEEDT :

Options granted to

BFUT ALTHERE

Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees Total
& B H 5% A A SRS BE &8 st
22 June 2012 14 July 2013 13 July 2018 275,000 725,000 1,000,000
20126 A22H 201347 H14H 20187 A13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2014 13 July 2018 412,500 1,087,500 1,500,000
201246 A22H 20147 A 148 20187 A 13 H
22 June 2012 14 July 2015 13 July 2018 550,000 1,450,000 2,000,000
20126 A22H 20157 A 14H 201847 A 13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2016 13 July 2018 687,500 1,812,500 2,500,000
201246 A22H 20167 A 14 H 201847 A13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2017 13 July 2018 825,000 2,175,000 3,000,000
20126 A22H 201797 R 148 20187 A13H
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 500,000 2,420,000 2,920,000
20151 A29H 2016 1 A29H 202541 A 28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 500,000 2,420,000 2,920,000
201541 A 29H 201741 H29H 202541 A28 H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 500,000 2,420,000 2,920,000
20151 A29H 20184 1 A29H 202541 A 28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2019 28 January 2025 500,000 2,420,000 2,920,000
201541 A29H 201941 H29H 202541 A28 H
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 500,000 2,420,000 2,920,000
201541 A29H 2020 1 A29H 202541 A28H

5,250,000 19,350,000 24,600,000
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 22 LUIBRAZELURMGAEEENRRS

(CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BRENKRE RNEFETEE
prices of share options are as follows: wr
Pre-IPO Share Option granted Share Option granted
On 22 June 2012 On 29 January 2015
1201256 A 228 ®2015518298
HRmERE HEmERE @t
Weighted Weighted
average No. of average No. of No. of
Exercise Price options  Exercise Price options options
il 257 TS
TEE  BREGH e  BREGR  BREGR
(000) (000) (000)
(F42) () (F4)
Qutstanding at 1 January 2015 R201551 818
(Note(1)) HAGER (1) HK$0.602938 7,664 - - 7,664
Granted before the Share Subdivision ~ #FIRAIHLR - - HK$3.3000/8 7 14,600 14,600
Exercised after the Share Subdivision ~ #FIRFE7TE (I3 ()
(Note(2)) HK$0.1507 7t (6,345) - - (6,345)
Effect of the Share Subdivision HEZE () 22,991 43,800 66,791
(Note(3))

Qutstanding at 31 December 2015 R2015%12 4318
(Note(2)) HARTTIE (FI3E Q) HK$0.1507 3% 7T 24,310 HK$0.825038 58,400 82,710

Exercisable at 31 December 2015 R2015%12 4318
(Note(2)) () HK$0.1507 8 7 2310 - - 2310
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 22 LUUIBRAZELURMMAEEERNRRS
(CONTINUED) (#8)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BRENEBERNEFLETHEE

prices of share options are as follows:
(continued)

wmr ()

Pre-IPO Share Option granted

On 22 June 2012 Total
R2012F6 H22H
i il wEt
Weighted
Average No. of No. of
Exercise price options options
InfEFS
B BREOCE  EREGH
('000) ("000)
(F1) (F17)
Outstanding at 1 January 2014 M2014F1 A1 H
(Note (1)) e AT (BEE (1)) HK$0.6029 /70 10,000 10,000
Exercised during the year (Note (1))  FREFTHE (MIFE(1)) HK$0.6029 7% 7T (2,336) (2,336)
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 72014412 A 31 H
(Note (1)) AT (BEE (1)) HK$0.6029 77T 7,664 7,664
Exercisable at 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H
(Note (1)) AITTHE (BEE(1)) HK$0.6029 77T 164 164

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was HK$1.08 (31
December 2014: HK$1.67).

The Pre-IPO share options granted on 22 June 2012
outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an exercise price of
HK$0.1507 after the effect of the share subdivision (2014:
HK$0.6029 before the effect of the share subdivision) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.94 years
(2014: 1.27 years).

The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at
31 December 2015 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 after
the effect of the share subdivision and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 2.08 years.

FANEITEBIRAERTTEE B BBA N
FR(EA1.087 7T (20145612 A31H : 1.67
BIT) e

201246 A22 B 4L & i 720154 12
A31BHEARITENE R ARBERER
REEIRIR AR B 1T B 5 0.1507 8 7T
(20144 : FAREBATA0.60297%7T)
BTN E QR 20944 (2014
£ 1274F)

20151 A29H #E & i 7420155 12
A31 B HARITENEREEINRIFRSY
B1EMITFE 082508 7T @ 4 T hE
T E HIERRR A 2.08 F ©
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 22 LUIBRAZELURMGAEEENRRS
(CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BRENEBRNEFLETHEE

wmr ()

prices of share options are as follows:

(continued)

Note: FfsE -

(1) The numbers of shares and average exercise price were (1) D& B RFEHITEE R BIFIRAER
presented as before the effect of the Share Subdivision. The AIAIE R 23R - B AR BHNHI T
details of the Share Subdivision is set out in note 24(c). 24(c) °

(2)  The numbers of shares and average exercise price were 2 KBHEBRFHITEBRIRBIFB ALK
presented as after the effect of the Share Subdivision. BHBERER -

3) It represented the effects of adjustments made to the numbers (3)

ERFBRME RN ERE (EH AR

B

I o

of shares as a result of the Share Subdivision.

(o)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

BRENAFERRR
TSRS AR BB R ) A B IR IR
BN ATERE - RLBREN A TE
fEHE = BA B E -

()
The fair value of services received in return for the share

options is measured by reference to the fair value of share

options granted. The estimated fair value of share options is

measured based on binomial lattice model:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

MR AT ERERR

Share option

Share option

granted on granted on
HRA B R R B R
29 January 2015 22 June 2012
R2015 % 2015
1HA29H 6H22H
Fair value per share at Rt E RSN ER
measurement date (Note) f& 1D A F(E (M) HK$0.2383 7T  HK$0.1947 7T
Share price (Note) BB (PF3E) HK$0.8250/%7C  HK$0.3400/8 7T

Exercise price per option (Note)
Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used

BinRBRENTTRE ()
AR IR (PAE A — TR R
EA R AT R IERR)

HK$0.8250 & 7T

HK$0.1507 7T

in the binomial lattice model) 42.4623% 46.8592%
Option life (expressed as weighted — B&RSHEEARR (FI/R AfE B

average volatility used in the BhpEER P AR

binomial lattice model) INAETI9 R 0E) 10 years 5 years 4
Expected dividends TEEAAR S 1.0000% 2.4179%
Risk-free interest rate f e B ) =R 1.8014% 0.5809%

Note: The fair value per share, share price and exercise price were
presented as after the effect of the Share Subdivision.

C BRATE - REMITEERRRFR
ERIRNIERZH



152 SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements
R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 22 LUUIBRAZELURMMAEEERNRRS

(CONTINUED) (#&)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions: (c) BRENLAFEERRBRK: (&)
(continued)
The expected volatility is based on past few years historical TEENR B HEREU LM ATRBASSE
price volatility of similar listed companies. Expected dividends S BRI NR - TEERR S TV ENEEE
are based on management’s best estimation. The risk-free BB EME o MERFETD2REASBUT
rate is referenced to the yields of Hong Kong Exchange Fund FrEs T BB AR HEVE 5 AR FE S B R MO B8
Bills/Notes issued by the Hong Kong Government with the INEESES RS E o

corresponding time to maturity of the option.

Except for the conditions mentioned above, there were no B Bl - e BB AR A T 2IFE R Y
other market conditions and service conditions associated E TR R AR AEE -
with the share option scheme.

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23 #AEHEiRAERAFIEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated () HEMHMRRERAMWENFH B
statement of financial position represents: i :

As of 1 January ®m1A1H 2,982 24,195
Provision for Hong Kong Profits FARBBFETEE

Tax for the year - 4,851
Provision for PRC income tax FARPEIFTIFT R

for the year 54,634 35,354
Income taxes paid EATFTEH (53,353) (61,197)
Reclassified as asset held for sale BENOBARBHEAE - (65)
Exchange difference X EE 5 (156)

As of 31 December M®12A31H 4,268 2,982
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23 #ZHGE8BBiARRAMNFAEH (8)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHRBEEREE :

(i) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) () REEFBEAKARRANEZRHELTESR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HEE/(BE)OEKRBS REAR
position and the movements during the years are as BEHIOT ¢
follows:

Provision
for inventories Undistributed Fair value
Unrealised  Fixed assets  Pre operating  Government Acrued  and trade profitof adjustment of
profit  depreciation expenses grant expenses  receivables TaxLoss subsidiaries assets
FEA
BAEK HRARN
AEN  BEEERE  SEAMR BRNERE REFR  AONAE EENTERR
Deferred tax arising from: $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 §000 §000
BERERITREEL ! T TR ThL AL 7T T T T Tin
At 1 January 2014 R0UEIATA 2593 60 194 159 844 39 = (4176) (127) (61)
Exchange adjustments Eiaz - - ) 1 5 - 5 - - ]
(Charged)credited to profit - Afgasd () /3tA
or loss (197) (24 (192) (1) 1577 230 1,024 (1,713)¢ 74 708
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ YEEHBA - - - - - - - - (4.8 (489
Deferred income tax assets - B39 EERAEEY
reclassified as held for sale  ETHEEE - (36) - (87) - - - - - (123)
At 31 December 2014 ROUENANE  23% - - - 2426 62 1,029 (5,889) (4,881) (4.297)
At 1 January 2015 R015E1A18 2,3% = = = 2,426 62 1,029 (5,889) (4,881) (4.297)
Exchange adjustments Eiaz - - - - (122) ") (155) - - (349)
(Charged)credited to profit - sfgzse () /3tA
or loss (706) - - - (482) 938 2404 845* 53 3,052

At 31 December 2015 RE12A318 1,690

1822 1488 3218 (5,044) (4.828) (1,594)

& These amounts include the provision of withholding @ #Z % & B ER2014%2015
tax on profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to FE R R B R R8s F 7
HK$4,446,000 and HK$2,060,000 for the year 2014 H B D Bl 4E 14,446,000 T
and 2015 respectively, and the reversal of deferred tax 122,060,000 7T B B # - KA
liabilities on withholding tax in respect of dividends KR # E2014F K2015F 12
paid and of liquidation of a subsidiary amounting to A31BEFEHREMKRETEN
HK$2,733,000 and HK$2,905,000 during the years KB A REEDBELA
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, respectively. 2,733,000 7% 7T } 2,905,0008 7T

FRETH IR B ERE -
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of
financial position:

e M BRR RN AER (&)

b) ERRELEHAEERKAE:
(&)

(i) #REMBBIRRRAOGEE :

Net deferred tax assets RERE R
recognised in the REPEETIHE E TR
consolidated statement of

financial position 8,278 6,473
Net deferred tax liabilities RERE R R
recognised in the HRNRLETIBE BFRE
consolidated statement of
financial position (9,872) (10,770)
(1,594) (4,297)
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BX - RERKE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EHZANTOHNER
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBGRE NS AR B & H
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity REERNERENGERREHRK - AR
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in AR FA) K 5 AR AE 2R B A BIAR K 265 19
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual R =l N

components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

Company AN/
Share Share Capital  Fair value Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits
Bx  RfEE  BARE  AVERE  REEA
§/000 $000 §/000 §000 §000
Thn T Thn i1 T
Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014E1 B1BHER 4150 1236% 81,955 3505 (293) 200374
Total comprehensive income for the year EREANGAE - - - (3,509) 40757 315
Dividend to shareholders Fgks b) S - S - (33,253) (33253)
Sharesissued under share option scheme REERETERANRN JE| 3204 (1819 = = 1408
Equity setted share-based transactions WEREENRNBERNRS ()i = = 1,363 = = 1,363
Balance at 31 December 2014 R014ENA3AR
and 1 January 2015 201551 B 1B 4173 126,900 81499 - 4572 17144
Total comprehensive income for the year EnzabaEE - - - - 37,83 37,83
Dividend to shareholders RERe (o) - - = - (40,027) (40,027)
Placing of new shares REHR ] 80 21,119 - - = 211949
Shares ssued under share aption scheme BERRETZETNRG (o 16 3276 233) = - 956
Equity setled share-based transactions NEREENRABERNRS (d)i) = = 9,685 = = 9,685

Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015E12 431 BER 5,019 341,29 83848 - 2381 837583
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 24 X7 - #ERKRE (&)
(b) Dividends (b) BRE

(i) Dividends payable and proposed to equity shareholders () BEENTFTAREZBRENFE

of the Company attributable to the year: FE(EIRE. -

Final dividend proposed after ~ 7E3f & HiAR & 23K 5

the end of the reporting REARR B FARE B

period of HK$0.02 (2014: &1 0.02 7T (2014 5 -
HK$0.08 per share before P& A B AT &A% 0.08 B 7T
the effect of the Share IR ERE TR 0.02 5 7T)

Subdivision, or HK$0.02 per
share after the effect of the
Share Subdivision) per

ordinary share 40,154 40,027
The final dividend proposed after the end of the P& HRE ZE ARSI ARERN
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability WMEHRERRAR -

at the end of the reporting period.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) ARBAREHETVREE T EBRIA
Company attributable to the previous financial year, RIFEREIGIRE
approved and paid during the year:

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December HBZE2015F12A31HLEFE - &
2014 of HK$0.02 per share after effect of the ANEHERIRE T HBR20144F
Share Subdivision amounting to a total dividend of RANBEFRRERENKRES
HK$40,026,900 was approved and paid during the #140,026,9007% 7T © & §20.02%5

year ended 31 December 2015. 7 ©
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(o)

Share capital

The par value of the ordinary shares of the Company was
initially at HKD0.01 per share. With effect from 24 September
2015, each of the then existing issued and unissued shares
of the Company was subdivided into 4 subdivided shares
of HKD0.0025 each (each defined as “Subdivided Share”),
after an ordinary resolution was passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2015 and
with an approval obtained from the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Share Subdivision”). Upon the
Share Subdivision became effective, the authorised capital
of the Company became HKD20,000,000, divided into
8,000,000,000 Subdivided Shares of HKD0.0025 each. The
other rights and terms of the shares remain unchanged as at
31 December 2015 (2014: 2,000,000,000 shares at HKDO0.01
per share, which are the numbers before the effect of the
Share Subdivision).

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 2,007,690,000 shares after the
effect of the Share Subdivision (2014: 417,336,250 shares
before the effect of the Share Subdivision), which included
15,690,000 shares after the effect of the Share Subdivision
(2014: 2,336,250 shares before the effect of the Share
Subdivision) held under the Share Option Schemes (Note
22(b)).

24 BX - RERKRE (H)

(9]

R

RAREBROVIEEELTARR0.01E
JC o # KA A A2015F9 B 24 H A B
MERBEFASRALBRERRIEG
EBBARSERATNALEER - B
201569 A24 B8 - ARAIKEBRES
BEEITRAREITROIFEA4RERAE
0.0025 TR 4R () (BIREE A [ 17
MR D (T3 ]) - FIREBIE - AR
A) B A TE B AN BK /5 20,000,000 7T © 5
/8,000,000,000 A% &A% E{E 0.0025 8 7T
B AL 1D » 20155128318 I
193 B EL (4 I FNMG R e 5 T (2014 5F -
2,000,000,000 & & AR E1E0.01 & T AI AR
7 BRI ENROHER)

R2015F 12 A318 © AARIEFRBRAER
EEE TS RRAE20R2,007,690,000
[% (20144 : #F f% 4 & A1417,336,250
B - & B ERR A AR RS
¥ 8 #915,690,000 f% (2014 4F = I % 4
KA 2,336,250 A% ) (FFaE 22(b)) °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 24 ¥4 - FERKRE (&)

(c) Share capital (continued) (o) M (&)
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends TS A AAEWERTEE RIS -
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per WEENRARRAS LZEEFR—EMNE
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank R - MBS BRI ARRNFEIREE
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. ZHRISMN -
Authorised and issued share capital EE B EITRA
2015 2014
2015 20144
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RGEE Ex-] b= i
Note (‘000) $'000 ('000) $'000
FoaE (FAR) FHET (Fr%) FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FRLEE0.015 7T
HK$0.01 each SRRl - - 2,000,000 20,000
Subdivided shares of SRXE(E 0.0025 7T
HK$0.0025 each FARRR A7 8,000,000 20,000 - -
Ordinary shares, issued TR TRHBLER :
and fully paid:
At 1 January ®R1H1H 417,336 4,173 415,000 4,150
Shares issued under share #FRXBIAR & B8 A% i1 &
option scheme before  ZE1THIAR (S
the Share Subdivision (i) - - 2,336 23
Shares issued under share % #& R IZEE A% #ERT 2]
option scheme after FITHIR G
the Share Subdivision (i) 6,345 16 - -
Placing of new shares I AT B &5 7 AR
before Share Subdivision (ii) 83,000 830 - -
Effect of Share R &
Subdivision 1,501,009 - - -

At 31 December MW12A31H 2,007,690 5,019 417,336 4,173
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24 CAPITAL,

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(c) Share capital (continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

On 24 January and 18 July 2014, options under the share
option scheme were exercised for 2,336,250 ordinary shares
of the Company at a consideration of HK$ 1,408,525 in total,
of which HK$ 23,363 were credited to share capital and the
balance of HK$ 1,385,162 was credited to the share premium
account and HK$1,819,067 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to share premium account in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted by share-based payment.

On 20 November 2015, options under the share option
scheme were exercised for 6,345,000 ordinary shares after
the effect of the Share Subdivision (2014: 2,336,250 ordinary
shares before the effect of the Share Subdivision) of the
Company at a consideration of HK$956,350 in total, of which
HK$ 15,863 were credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$940,487 was credited to the share premium account and
HK$2,335,959 has been transferred from the capital reserve
to share premium account in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted by share-based payment.

On 26 February 2015 the Company placed 83,000,000 new
shares before the effect of the Share Subdivision to third
parties at a price of HK$2.66. Proceeds of HK$830,000
representing the par value of these ordinary shares, were
credited to the Company’s share capital and the excess of
the proceeds over the nominal value of the total number of
ordinary shares issued after offsetting share issuance costs of
HK$211,119,000, were credited to the share premium account
of the Company.

24 X - mERKEE (8)
() MK (&)
AT REEBTRA (H)

Wi

(i) R2014F1 8248 X7R188  # 4
ARIRERETETHERARE  RE
2,336,250 R AN A E EBAR - BEFRA
1,408,525 7T - BIRARG BEM S
MEEFBUR - BERTH 23,3638 7T
AR - H 41,385,162 7% 7Tt AR
i BER : 1,819,067 B LB HERN
EEBARMDEER -

R2015411 8208 » #F & £ %1% -
A ABBRBERESZTERRE R
B% 6,345,000 1% ¥ i/ AR (2014 4F : 7R
AT 2,336,250 IRERAR) - BERE
956,350/8 7T © RIEAMRD BERE T
HIEETHER - LEFRT 15,863 BTt
ABEA - H£4940,487 38 T it AR i
B8R © 2,335,959 8 TE &AM
BEAR S EIR -

(i)  M2015F2AH268 » KRAREFRKE
MATA2.66 B TTHBRAE=FES
83,000,000 f&37A% - HE R EBREE
"I AT 18 7K 78 830,000 /8 L E 5t AR R &
RIRRZR » PSR IBR SR (D BT R
211,119,000 B LA BB E ZHITE BR
LHBEENERED T ALRRQ BRI G
BiR ©



160

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI E

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL,

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve
General reserve fund

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year/
period losses) to the statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of each relevant
PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the subsidiary.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve presents the fair
value of the share options granted to employees of
the Group in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted by share-based payments in note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
information of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars.

24 BX - fEREE (R
(d) RHENEERAR
i) BRORE

P03 (B #5 A A B O B ) T B
TI7RR AR P U ER AT S 50 R 2 A
HIZEER °

RERSHEREE  ARAMNK
MaERFNERAIHEDIERTAR
AR - MESERERE RS A
& ARRIAEMEN—REKB
R E| B RETS

(i) SEERE
—REEEE

BEEANPEER  NEE/M
EFENBARAEBFEENTEE
(s F—EFE RN E
B)H10% EBRELTEHE 2
ZEREEES AT REMNE AR
EMERES0% o HERD IR
BT RERRRAIER SR -
EERES TR ESEBEREN L
HERENA - KB A R Rt
Eiask g MEFEME A o

(i) SABRAD B E R RSB B
BARR ) 5 2T e N G2 T AR U
£ 2(q)i) o AR AR R E
HERE T AR EIE S SRR
AT -

(v) B34

PE R R E LB TTIASMN T
EEERIENEBNMBEERRE
ERRTEINEERE



IR B ARDF
—E-RFFH

Notes to the Financial Statements
W R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

(v) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
notes 2(e).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity
and debt in a balanced position and ensure that there was
adequate working capital to service its debt obligations. The
Group's gearing ratio, being the Group’s net debt over its
shareholder’s equity as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 was
72% and 12% respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements in the current and
prior years.

24 BX - RERKRE (H)

(d)

(e)

RENTEERRAR (&)
(v) 2REERE

N (BB RIER RS BERF
BT B RN R B8R
WATE  LIREH E 2B EE
BT A -

BEXxERE

AEEEREANTIRERIAREAS
BSEKENREN - RZEEBRERRR
IR RS EE an S IR FE (B S A & FE AR AT ER
BE - AR RN R AR O AL E A
HEEXE -

A B AR 5 R R A
1 VR S B R BT AR
BB R R A AR R R ES
KRB 2 BG4 - 0 R AR
R AR R -

REESREBBARAELRER - KNEH
RSB T ARSI A R BB TE - R
ERMEEESRNEEREME - A%EE
R2014F K% 2015512 A31 BN EESR
fELL &R (BN & B ) FE TR A H AR R 4
H)DANET2% K 12% °

RAFERBEFE - ARBHEAEMM
&R BB SSMNEBIE I A B AN B KT
fR o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arise in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180
days from the date of invoice. Debtors with balances that
are more than 1 year from the date of invoice are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 22.7% (2014: 31.0%) of the total trade
debtors were due from the Group’s largest customer and
36.2% (2014: 65.7%) of the total trade debtors were due
from the Group’s five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statements of
financial position.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 16.

25 PEREEREMIANDTE

AEBRBEEEBBRETEELEE  RPE
T MEREEERR  AEBAMEENZER
i Ko AN B P A B IR 2 5 R B ) B 7S L B T I
BER KB HI# AT o

(a)

FERR

AEBEEERRTIEREEHRUGIAR
HAi IR - NREBSHMAZERRT
—EEREENTFPETEENS - tF
FHEIERP BRI MER L EIANE A
HEREES AR EBAREFPULER
REMELBERENTEER - EHRIK
RENEEZEEEZAYE0HE
180 HAZIH] - RER TEAE—FEE
Al - EABBEME R B HRR
RBB—FORERESR - —KME - A
SETEZREPRHERS

MW2015%12 4318 - ZMEEEM&ZEH%
ANE P B FRIE(E R AR RABRER 22.7%
(20144 : 31.0%) ° ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ B fE i H
HAARBF R FIBFEW RN ABR RN 36.2%
(2014%F : 65.7%) * HMAKBEXT — T2
ERNEERREF -

EREERARESRSREENMEARR
RARFREE

AEEWERESCAEBAZ EERBRD
EEMBIER

ERREEASAE S ERRIBREM
EWREmEENEERBNE—TEE
WERIHNHIE16 -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
management and directors when the borrowing exceeds
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group'’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

Trade and other payables B S REMUE RE MR FIE
Convertible bond RRES
Bank loans BRIERRES

25 ?%@@%ﬁ&%ﬂlﬂmﬁ$ﬁ
]

(b) RBEZRERE

AEBNEEEEREEEAFNES
B BEARSBMETRHRENSE
BERNENEHNRSFR - EHEE
HBETRESHE  AIREERERES
B - ARENBRREHERHEREE
SHEKREDETEERE  FULBERE
HEFRE R REE ESREERM
B 7T B A B & R DA PR AT EL A2 B K = BA
/}\L@éiﬁ* °

T?Eﬁﬁﬁ'zli’%l?F?ﬁTE&@TE%%ﬁE\%E’:\
BERRNBRTEORIBEN - ZFBUE
DERE ,\\’Uﬂiﬂﬂiiﬁfﬁéﬁi( BREERA
#O 2 B (1188 B ) s BAARE B A0 A

FHEEF SR KA SR B A R
H&RFEH

As at 31 December 2015
B2015512 4318
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ANRRRRETE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but

Carrying 1 year or within less than

amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years

155 BB1F BB2%

REE &it EEZX B25RK {B5E R

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TAR TAR TAR AR

292,185 300,266 300,266 - -
69,198 73,150 2,100 71,050 -
96,454 100,931 100,478 233 220

457,837 474,347 402,844 71,283 220
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERERMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELSRME ()

As at 31 December 2014
12014512 318
al undiscounted cash flow

More than More than
Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut

Carrying 1 year or within less than

amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years

1 Rak RB1F it oy kS

RH{E CE B2 B2ER BSERM

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

TAT AT TAL TATL

Trade and other payables BAENTEREMENE 204,347 206,702 206,702 - -
Convertible bond MRRES 69,159 75,250 2,100 2,100 71,050
Bank loans BITERREX 313,558 319,254 318,376 20 658
587,064 601,206 527,178 2,320 71,708

(c) Interest rate risk (o) FI=m b
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans REBEOFXREREZRBITERRIZE
and cash at bank issued at variable rates that expose the RITHESESL - ERRESAEBEAR
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does not RenEFERER - AEEVEEHSH
use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate PTHET BRI RE R - REBEFRE [F
risk. The Group defines “net borrowings” as being interest- BE| AT ESRABRITEEREE -
bearing financial liabilities less interest-bearing financial REBEBHERBERNNXEEHNTX
assets. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by (i) °

management is set out in (i) below.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRIAEMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) () FI=m=Bsx (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FEAE
The following table details the interest rate profile TREFMKNEENTEEMEER
of the Group’s interest-generating financial assets FFESRBENREHRROFERAE
and interest-bearing financial liabilities at the end of o

reporting period:

2015 2014
20154 201445
Effective Effective interest

interest rate rate
BRH® BRFIE

% %

Bt Biptt

Net fixed rate borrowings: ~ BEEMERK

Bank loans RITERREX 6.63 (28,710) 6.76 (29,652)
Convertible bond akES 3.00 (69,198) 3.00 (69,159)
Other payables Hib R 6.75 (137,604) 6.79 (127,201)
(235,512) (226,012)
Net variable rate borrowings: FFEME
Bank loans RITERREX 2.60-6.90 (67,744) 2.25-7.20 (283,906)
Less: Cash at banks BITER 0.01-0.35 193,734 0.01-0.36 174,812
Restricted cash XRHHRE 0.35 3,628 0.36 18,950
129618 (79707, 14}1})
Total net borrowings FlaTeE (105,894) (316,156)
Net fixed rate borrowing as FESMER
a percentage of total net fER B AR ERA
borrowings Aol 222.4% 71.5%
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increase/decrease the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately $990,000 (2014:
$389,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax
that would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to floating rate instruments
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at that date. The analysis does not take into account
exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising from
fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases made by the PRC subsidiaries which give rise
to receivables, payables, cash balances and bank loans that
are denominated in United States dollars (“USD"). Presently,
the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure.

25 BEREERESMTIAENAFEE

(%)

(9]

(d)

M=k (&)
(i) SREIMN

PR2015%F12 A318 » & & X
HEEE F A/ A 100EE S - FEFT
BEMEERFTENBERT - &
£ BB 1E 5 F) R (R B HE 518 0
/b #9990,000 % 7T (2014 £ -
389,00077T) °

B RRE DT AR E R
i A B BIRF R B - & A RER A
ZEHSAEEMARBERENX
RBFTE R FEMETA - AR
AEBYESERAEFENT
MESTE - Ft ot &EEEE
STAEENAFENXRRER - It
B ITHE2014F B[R] —EAEHETT o

B

N SENZE SNkl E P N= L)
BRRHHE MIRE  AHHENRRBE
HEAET(ET D IENEKFIR - &
MR~ REHEHRRIRITER - H/EF - K
SSE0 EA BSNE R R B BRI
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRIAEMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) ExmEps (&)
Exposure to currency risk RS &R
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of TRV AREBRREHRAAETHELE
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised Bk - ZEEERR T AIZEEE AT
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than BEEE AN B HENE EREELA
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. BEMEL - H2HREMME @ EREEE
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure TEOR  WIARE HAIRABENHAE R & o
are shown in HKD, translated using the spot rate at the BEINREBIEER AR EE 2 HREE
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from the FrEEMZERTETEEA o

translation of the financial information of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

Exposure to USD
(expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)
EE (B TREN)

Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&EFEER 375 1

Net exposure arising from recognised DHEREEN BE
assets and liabilities FTEE 803 @ f 375 1
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

usD W

25 BEREERESMTIAENAFEE

(&)
(d)

B (&)

TRIIRARE BT R RBAUFIE
WA RN RS R A EARBNES
R BT A BB R (183
H{BERBHRETE) -

2015 2014
20155 20144

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit (decrease) profit
in foreign after tax in foreign after tax
exchange and retained exchange  and retained
rates profits rates profits
HBEBRF M & A
E=x RRE A fE = RARER 5 A
R/ (FE) wEg Lt/ (TR )7
$'000 $'000
FTHET TET
5 14 5 -
(5) (14) (5) =

usb ET

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into HKD at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes. The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial information
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

ERFFINDTER » RRAEESERE
B REMAZNARTZE(REREN
DR EWETE - WAREHIRAEREX
BERABTTERINZA) S RHREE -
HREIMBRRERNEEE ARNEFT
EXKEMBAEYNHEHMR FAKHE
HEEIMNERRHSRIEA < k2T T8
BEINREBHBER RS EEZHRER
PTELEMZR - DMTNE BHIRFIK 2014
FHF —ELEHELT -



IR R EEARA 169
—E-nFFH

Notes to the Financial Statements
W R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERESRIAEMNAFE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)

(e) Equity price risk (e) RERB:

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as equity securities (see note 14).
Other than unquoted securities held for strategic purposes, all
of these investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or sell equity
securities are based on daily monitoring of the performance
of individual securities compared to that of the stock market
index, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 10% in the relevant stock market index (for
listed investments), with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group's profit after tax
(and retained profits) as follows:

Change in the relevant equity HRERERGEZENEE !
price risk variable:

Increase #n
Decrease B

AEBEmEHBEREEIFNRAIREN
EANKREZEBER (2ME14) - B
FAERBEREHIELMESRIN - FIBEZ
FREYR/LENHRE -

REER ETRERE BB LN - B
ARHEEBEFNRERSREBESHER
(BRI FEFRE R R TISEEE R LA
SEHRBDESHTERIEL

2015412 A318 ' RBEEMBEFHRH
ZRF[AE - ZHREABRMER(E LHE
Bifmz)Em/ CRd)10% - AEEE
g (RAREEF) i< H L g,/
AT

2015
2015 F
Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained

profits

2015 4
HERRFR
RERFHTE
$'000

FET

10% 8,341
(10)% (8,341)
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERERMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)

(e) Equity price risk (continued) (e) MERP (&)
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in BRI EEAOBEET (&
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would REBEN) BEEEMEIRES - WER
arise assuming that the changes in the stock market index or A& T e 8 ek E b AR RE RS B 2 M EF B R
other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the EHREELE - WERARENTEAEE
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those BA RIS B R AL BRI E R
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the eI -

Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

(f) Fair values measurement ) DFEFE
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BRAFEFENSREENES

value

Fair value hierarchy NFEER

The following table presents the fair value of the TREJNAGEERNRERARZEE

Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of EEMFENERMIAATE - Z

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized SeMmT AER N EBYBRE

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in ERDE 135 - [ A EEE] R

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which ER=EAFERER - NEBRR

a fair value measurement is classified is determined VAT B 77 A 2R A ) B A B HY ]

with reference to the observability and significance of ERBEENEERN  #tmETAF

the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: Et2SEMERBNER

0 Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using . F-EREE: REAFE—
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices & A\ A (BIEREES A
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities ERETE B BEERMIEN
at the measurement date RISFHRIRE) Rt 2 A FE

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o FIELGHE: FRE_E
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which R ABEEIAREE—ER
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant BRI BRI AE) WREE KX
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are TR B R ANBERAEAT
inputs for which market data are not available B NAIEREAETER

AT 5 2R 1Y 8 A (B
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . FIEBREE: FAEKRT

significant unobservable inputs AERGABERTEATFE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair values measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value at
31 December
2015
R20155
12A31H

HATPE

Level 1
F—EH
$'000
THET

§'000
TER

Recurring fair value S%#ATEHE

measurements
Assets: BE
Financial assetsat B E&EH
fair value through
profit or loss 83410
Liabilties AR
Financial liabilities at  MUAFEFEREE
farvaluethrough ~ EIAEEEZE)
profit or loss SHEE 1,403 =

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015,
there were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the conversion option and redemption
options embedded in the convertible bonds are
determined using Black-Scholes model. The discount
rate used is derived from market yield of “BBB” rated
USD bonds, adjusted for country risk premium between
Hongkong and United States and liquidity risk premium
for the unlisted status and size of the convertible bond
itself of 1.50%.

MEEREERSMIANATE

(%)
(H DFEEE)
() BRATEHBNSBEENAMR

categorised into
MM2A318
BEATER

AVEFEHE
Level 2

EZER

$000

TAR

83410 =

1,403

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December

Level 3
E=EfR
$'000
TR

31 December

(%)
RFEER(E)

Fair value at Fair value measurements
as at 31 December
categorised into

A31A

2014
20145
125318
HATE
Level 3
F=ER
$'000
TAL

Level 1
E—ER
$'000
THL

1,891 = 1,891 =
M E £2014F &20156F 12 A 31
HIEFE RESBMIAEATE
NE—BHR F_BRANE=EBL
fEERs o

B BRAFEEEAGER
A (&

MAERREFNEIRAZER
B [ 2 4 &9 A F (& 2 {F F Black-
Scholes #2 AU SREE - ATARLIR R Z
#BBBRETLEFMTH MRS
- 83721.50% HEEEER 2 fH
BREMBEE  FE LTI A RE
MR 5 (B A R TR R (B 25 AR AR
% °
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 25 BiEREERERMIAMNAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%48)
(f) Fair values measurement (continued) ) DFEFE(E)
(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) FERAFEIRNEHEERERS
at other than fair value HATE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial RNEEER AT IEAN R A RN €
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not MTEMEMESEE  BER2014
materially different from their fair values as at 31 FR2015F 12 A31 HHAFED
December 2014 and 2015. BIRK o
26 COMMITMENTS 26 &iE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at (@) M2015F12A31BKBITRREK
31 December 2015 not provided for in the REBHERPELBENERE
financial statements were as follows: =1 N

Contracted for EETAY 36 5,320

(b) At 31 December 2014 and 2015, the total (b) 7M2014%F % 2015128318 -
future minimum lease payments under non- BRETAHELCLEHENRARE
cancellable operating leases are payable as EHEESRATEZRAIMT
follows:

Within 1 year 1A 7,647 7,403
The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties and REBRETRELCEHERENMER
plant held under operating leases. The leases typically run for MEHEBA o —fRmE - HENYZH
an initial period of one to two years, with an option to renew RA—ZE_F REEERMEIRRE
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases AHEER - HEMEREXAESE

includes contingent rentals.
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXBEBERZ
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, transactions with REZE2015F % 2014F 12 A31 BIEFER -
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions: BRI HETHRZ SR BB S
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
2]yt BB R IR
Mr Guo Yumin Director and the Controlling Shareholder
LERELE of the Group
REBESFITRARR
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Owned by Mr Guo Yumin, the director and
(Note 1) the Controlling Shareholder
TN ImEEERZEAERAE (1) HESHRIERRRBEREERES
Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd Owned by Mr Guo Yumin, the director and
(Note 1) the Controlling Shareholder
BMNEREHERBEARAT (FHFE1) HEERIERRRSEREEHER
Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group Co., Ltd Effectively owned 49% equity interest in
(Note 1&2) JSST for the year ended 31 December 2014
RIS TR DB AR AR (1 R&2) HZE2014F 12 A31HIEFE
FEEH ISSTH 49% AR
Note 1: The English translation of the name is for reference only. The MIEE1 - BNAMEZLIBEMSE - ZZERHNE
official name of the entity is in Chinese. T BTEARSURE o
Note 2: Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group effectively owned 49% FizE2 - RV B R EERMDBRAREEZE 2014
equity interest in JSST for the year ended 31 December 2014. F12A31BIEFEEERFISSTHI49% AR
SCGHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed ¥ o AN RIHE A MK B A B SCGHLE 2015
51% of its equity interest in JSST on 15 January 2015. More FI1AISEHEERISSTASN% R

details were disclosed in note 27(b). IEEAMEE 27(b) P IKREE ©
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

(b)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

27 EXBBAERS (&)

(a) TEEEAESHMH

AEBETEEEABFHM(BIBNME?
P B8 S T8 5 RRIAPRE 8 P FE <
TET R EBFIR) HIT

Short-term employee benefits b=l =i 11,684 6,864
Post-employment benefits BB &R T 273 503
Equity compensation benefits AR AFH (E 12 A 3,370 646

15,327 8,013

Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

Other related party transactions

(i)

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreements dated 4
April 2014 and 16 May 2014, the Company purchased
the entire issued share capital of STIIL, a company
wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholder and
director, Mr Guo Yumin for HK$165,000,000. The
acquisition was settled by issuing a convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$165,000,000 to Mr Guo
Yumin.

Upon completion of the acquisition which took place
on 30 June 2014, STIIL. became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and all the profit and loss
and assets and liabilities of the STIIL. were consolidated
to the financial statements of the Company.

FMEBERIEIAA] RE(RKE
5(b)) °

(b) EftEHALXZ
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B R2014F4 848 &5A16
AFEFIMEERHZE - AQ TS
ERBREREFSEREEDEH
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXEBERS (&
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other related party transactions (continued) (b) HtEHAIRS (&)
(i) SCGHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (i)  M2015F1A158 ' AR RAE2 &
has entered into a Equity Transfer Agreement with B B X B)SCGHL » Bt i & FAISST
Chinese Hongkong International Tobacco Group Co., H)51% AXiE - R REFEREE
Limited (the “Purchaser”) in relation to a disposal HEFERAR(EFFT TR
of 51% of its equity interest in JSST on 15 January FEEE R o B ARSI
2015. The Purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary SEIRMHAER AR (HFEYISE]D) /Y
of Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group Co., Ltd. 2EMBRTF - RYIHFERISSTR
(“Shenzhen Jinjia”), which is a shareholder of JSST, RHEHI9% EF - EZFHB
holding 49% of its interest. More details were disclosed PRI EE28 ©
in note 28.
(iiiy  Other transactions with related parties (i) HM@EHMIRS

2015
20155
Proceeds Interest on
Interest Rental from Repayment of convertible

expenses S borrowing borrowing bond
TRRES

FEXH BExH HERSREA REEX o)=Y
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
Tign TiEn TR Tign TR

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate %M InBe it ER &
Development Co., Ltd. BRAFE 7,754 574 33,540 (8,227) -
Mr Guo Yumin BERFKE - - - - 2,596

1,754 574 33,540 (8,227) 2,596
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXRBEBAIRS (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other related party transactions (continued) (b) HtEHAIRS (&)
(i) Other transactions with related parties (continued) (i) EMEEE SRS (B)

2014
20145
Proceeds Interest on
Interest Rental from  Repayment of convertible

eXpenses expenses borrowing borrowing

MEXL Hexh BEMENE EEER Ejﬂﬁ
§'000 §000 $'000 $'000
TAL TEL TAL AT TAL

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate iRt EREERAR

Development Co., Ltd. 2,492 826 73,520 (28,786) -
Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate M 2 REHEREBRAR
Development Co., Ltd. 1,203 - 7433 (7,433) -
Mr Guo Yumin BEREE - - - - 776
3,695 826 80,953 (36,219) 776
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEBEEESHVAER
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had the M2015F K% 2014512 A31H * A5 E
following balances with related parties: HIGARE T B ASERTA T ¢

At At

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

2015 12A31H

12H318 20144
$'000 $'000
FHET FH&T

Amount due (from)/to the controlling FE{TIZER% A% IR E B 7B
shareholder and director

— Mr Guo Yumin -FERESE (i) 1,791 3,757
Amount due to related companies  FE{EEEE A 7 FE
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate — RMIHE E%fmﬁ
Development Co., Ltd. FREARAR (ii) 71,125 44,808
— Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate - IRMNEREHE
Development Co., Ltd. HEFR AR - 1,203
Convertible bond issued to the MZERAR R R E =
Controlling Shareholder and BATRIHANRE S
director
— Mr Guo Yumin - ERESE (iii) 70,601 71,050

143,517 120,818
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(d)

Balances with related parties (continued)

(i) The amount due to the controlling shareholder and
director is expected to be recovered within one year.

(i)~ Pursuant to the agreement dated 13 May 2014
and dated 25 January 2015, Xuzhou Ruilong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. had advanced loans of
RMB58,000,000 and RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$73,520,000 and HK$33,540,000)
to the Group at interest rate 8.515% and 7.990% per
annum. The Group partially repaid the loan amounted
to HK$28,786,000 on 14 November 2014 and
HK$8,227,000 on 16 March 2015.

(i) Information about convertible bond due to the
Controlling Shareholder and director has been disclosed
in note 20.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of Xuzhou Ruilong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Mr. Guo Yumin above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
financial assistance received by a listed issuer’s Group from
a connected person or commonly held entity, which are
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and are not
secured by the assets of the Group.

27 EXBBAERS (&)

(o) EERARETT HYAEER ()

() EAERERRESOFRB
R—F AU -

(i) 1B ¥ R2014F5H13H &2015
FE1H258 TN BIMNE
EEHMERZEAERAREMASE
B 2% & & A R %58,000,0007T
& A R ¥ 27,000,000 75 (47488 A
73,520,0007 JT K 33,540,000 %
T)HER - EFIRFFIES.515%
%7990% B AEEE R
201411 A148 X% 201543 A
16HEEDRHDEN €8S A
28,786,000/ 7T }28,227,00078 7T °

(i) BRARMNZERRRFESH AR
BEHNFIEE R E 20 P IKRE -

AREAEXZH(LETRRDER
i3

RIBECETRRBDFE14AE - P B R
MinEE S ERBR AR ARMBERSLE
MR T X SBREER HRGEMER
5 BRERHEHR BT ETRADE
TUAENRERTE @ AREBER EMET
AEEHEE A T RES B RESS
MIBIRE) - R PR —REERHREE
RFRETT AT RBAREEEEFER
o

(d)
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28

29

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 15 January 2015, Sheen China Group Holdings Ltd. (“SCGHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement with Chinese Hongkong International Tobacco
Group Co., Limited (the “Purchaser”) in relation to a disposal
(the “Disposal”) of 51% of its equity interest in Jiangsu Shuntai
Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“JSST"). The
Purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen lJinjia Color
Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jinjia”), which is a minority
shareholder of the JSST, holding 49% of its interest. Pursuant to the
Equity Transfer Agreement, the consideration for the Disposal was
RMB325 million (the “Consideration”).

On 9 March 2015, the resolution in relation to disposal of JSST was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting. The official registration of the change in equity
interest in JSST with the relevant authorities was completed on 16
April 2015.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a) Revenue recognition

The Group’s sales of goods are recognised when criteria
set out in note 2(t) are met. Managerial judgement is
applied regarding, among other aspects, conformance with
acceptance criteria and if transfer of risks and rewards to the
customer has taken place to determine if revenue should
be recognised in the current year and the customer credit
standing to assess whether payment is likely or not to justify
revenue recognition.

Revenues may materially change if management’s assessment
of such criteria was determined to be inaccurate.

28

29

RFERENFRBEE

20151 A15 8 » ARRIZEWBAR]IEES
B AR AT ([SCGHL) st & 15 ESRE
EEREFR AR AR ([ISSTI) H51% MEEF
EESRREEEESRAR(ESFDIINT
fRiEsEE R ® - EH RRINDERNEBRS
ERAB(FRYSEDHEERB AR FY
$hrae ISSTOHARE - FEEA9% #Exm o 1R
BRESZEGS  LERERAARK325E
T ([BRER]) -

M2015F3A9H  BEHE T&HIERBEE
FIEHE B R A RIA AR EEAR QR REMRE
FRIRE LHbEmRE - 20156416 H » K
AFIE MA AREERZ DT EIER R
R BRA RN o

CEREEPE] |

REBFHER A M RAE - TRBELRR
HisA= (BHEREBBERTH B REHHAIED
BIETRH) (ARt R I -

e FE R A R B B HT IS
T

EREEDT

(a) WARER

AREAERE Mo 20 IR R R S a
HE - BEBHEERMELNTARKIE
% BRMNMBHMESEEBETS - AR
ERBREAFERIWA  BIREEA
HI BT = P15 AR - ATl T 3R E0 AT BE
1 WSS ERBUARIRE ©

MBEREE REDEFETRRE - 1
AT B R EARE -



IR B ARDF
—E-RFFH

Notes to the Financial Statements
W R R B 5

R 2015412 A31 B (BT AER)
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Allowance for doubtful receivables

As described in note 25(a), credit risks of customers are
regularly assessed with reference to the estimated future cash
flow of an individual debtor or a portfolio of debtors and
changes in the financial condition that have an adverse effect
on the debtor, and allowances are recorded for estimated
losses. If the financial conditions of customers were to
deteriorate/improve, additional/reversal of allowance may be
required in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews
annually the estimated useful lives of the assets in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. In addition, these estimates could change significantly
as a result of change in customer preference and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
measures these estimates at each reporting date.

29

SRt hEt Rl (&

(b)

(9]

(d)

FE W R AR

— QOB EE 25(a) At - AN B E B R AE A
FHiEERR - Y2EEBEBARER
AEEWMTEFIARRASRE - UREER
AEETHZENMBEARRE - siihast
BRI ER - MRFPHMBIOREL
S BE - RRBRBERRE RSN
R O o

e

ME - BFE R REEF R REREE
& WEFTAERFRARBERENE -
AEEEFIR N EENMGF A EAFHIA
EEMEARERAR TSN ERX
G - AIEAFHIUASERBEED
BIELERIFT M FREIRO RN B 5 R EE -
HBERNGFTEEAZE - BIRREEN
FERXAFLAE -

FEUSEFE

FEASRFEERN —REBEIEP AT
EEREFTERRANRHERTKNE
B o ZEHFTRBE BIA R ELER
HERBUEERMNBELRED - 1
Oh > ZEMGFTAREEFPEFHIREE R
BFHF REERIRITREHARIATT
BMBELBAES) - EERENSHRE A

QECERE
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29 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatments of
such transactions are reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the related tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management reassess these estimates at each
end of the respective reporting period.

Investment property

The Group has temporarily sub-let a vacant warehouse but
has decided not to treat this property as an investment
property because it is not the Group’s intention to hold this
property in the long-term for capital appreciation or rental
income. Accordingly, this property is still treated an item of
other property, plant and equipment.

29

SRt hEt R HE (&)

(e) FREHL

(f)

EEMBHARELEE TR HRKHEA
BRI HIET - NEBEIEFER H O
FEVFRARNOREEE - EREXSH
MIGERIE & PEHE BIAGH KATATUE
B8 o AN LR E R 5| BERTEN
HEES TUER - ARZFRELHEE
EEENABHENSRA R ER K
SRR ERTOR NG T IARER - HEEE
ZR 1 HI B A R R SR B B AR A 1) 9 7
el - ERERSREMRENFEZS
fliat o

BREMR
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DA BEN M BARR R

30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30
POSITION

Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBREIRIRE 12 249,955 249,955
249,955 249,955
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through LAAFEFEBEHZS) A
profit or loss EHEENeREE 47,502 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 e GRIA K E A R U K8 269,524 130,911
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEER 2,456 26,217
319,482 157,128
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R FRIE R E M FET FRIE 61,293 118,889
Financial liabilities at fair value through LAAFERFEBEHEB) A
profit or loss EHEENeRAE 1,403 1,891
62,696 120,780
Net current assets REBEERE 256,786 36,348
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARE 506,741 286,303
Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible bond AR ES 69,198 69,159
NET ASSETS BEE 437,543 217,144
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30

31

32

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (CONTINUED)

30

DR EEHM BRI K (B)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E

Share capital A& A 24(a) 5,019 4,173
Reserves G 24(a) 432,524 212,971
TOTAL EQUITY RER A 437,543 217,144

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2016.

Xia Yu
Directors
Bau Siu Fung

—_— — — — ~—

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 17 March 2016 the Group, Bloom Shine Investments Limited
and the Treasure Cloud Limited entered into a Sale and Purchase
Agreement, pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to purchase, and Bloom Shine Investments Limited conditionally
agreed to sell, the entire equity interest in Treasure Cloud Limited
for a total consideration of HK$236,160,000 which shall be satisfied
by the Group issuing a convertible bond in the principal amount
of HK$236,160,000. No adjustments have been made to these
financial statements in this regard.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI and beneficially
owned by Guo Yumin. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

31

32

W EARRRENR 2016 E3 A30 B EE= SR
AR o

Bl
=
/)N

g

—_ — — — —

BERRIIFAREER

20163 H17H - A& & E - Bloom Shine
Investments Limited & Treasure Cloud Limited 57
YEEWE B AEBEKRHERERE -
i Bloom Shine Investments Limited & 1§14 =
& H 7 Treasure Cloud Limited 89 2 2F A% -
(B A 236,160,000 7T + W iR A A S @
i 2R & %8 4 236,160,000 7 7T A AT R (£ 5 (8
i o WHER L E AR IS SRR P IEL A% -

BEERSRRERS

R2015F 12 A31H  EERE ~A&EENE
B AR RERERT BIBREEIERERA
Al ZARINEBE XS EMA W HEE

EolE ZERITERRAIHARFEAD
BIISRE o
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 REZ2015F12A31BLEFERE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT TEMRME s R AERBVIEET - FTERIR
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RENEERE

DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA HETNBEAMEHREAE  EESHMAEE
has issued a few amendments and standards which are not yet BHETEREZE2015F 12 A31BIEFEE R
effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have A B AR AR TS AR IR NS ET R AR © 3Z
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the T RELBIE T AT Re AL B EEE -

following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

AL B #isg
ZERBRNES
HBEXN
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle (B BRI B# & E R D) FE N 1 January 2016
(2012 2014 FZE5) 2016451 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative (CEAEFHEANSE 150 1 January 2016
CHIEE 20164F1 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of ~ (BB &FT#RI)FE 1657 K&
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation (CERGERDE 385 1 January 2016
EVEET — ATERITER 201641 A1 H
BT AR
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (EBRHIREZERD 1 January 2018
F55 - R EFEAIHMA 201841 A1H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CBEABYEREER]) 1 January 2018
Fogt - 2B LA 201841 A1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the 7N £ B IF ST (4 2% (5 5T FE B A FE B ) R i =2
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of 2. BTAR AEBEDELEES  HAZE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them BT R AT S A BTSRRI EAE -

is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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AFPHEE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LLFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
$'000 $'000
FHET T
Turnover =E L0 469,241 712,534 706,134 699,555 674,983
Cost of sales SHERAR (338,287)  (430,286) (439,487)  (445,033)  (428,346)
Gross profit E7 130,954 282,248 266,647 254,522 246,637
Other revenue and net income E A BRI 13,185 25,950 12,777 16,188 26,003
Distribution costs baNi= D% (17,665) (14,777) (15,392) (11,941) (17,642)
Administrative expenses TR L (89,364) (76,354) (67,943) (66,459) (43,169)
Other operating expenses HgERz (2,649) (8,100) (624) (844) (17)
Profit from operations R 34,461 208,967 195,465 191,466 211,812
Net income from disposal HEMB AR
of a subsidiary JEUI 362,125 - - - -
Finance costs BFFS R AR (15,422) (18,366) (19,645) (21,085) (18,603)
Profit before taxation BADER 381,164 190,601 175,820 170,381 193,209
Income tax FTiS®t (54,634) (39,497) (47,489) (46,453) (52,453)
Profit for the year FRRF 326,530 151,104 128,331 123,928 140,756
Attributable to: BT ALY :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIEZRE 326,530 92,507 77,934 70,076 81,426
Non-controlling interests IR R R = 58,597 50,397 53,852 59,330
Profit for the year FEREFR 326,530 151,104 128,331 123,928 140,756
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEERE
Total Assets BEE 1,414,399 1,194,906 861,630 790,131 829,317
Total liabilities waE (497,049)  (658,178) (389,400)  (395,598)  (438,514)
Net Assets FEE 917,350 536,728 472,230 394,533 390,803
Total equity attributable to equity A2 T EFK R
shareholders of the Company PElL RS 917,350 441,868 382,489 333,505 241,176
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